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12 LINDSAY BARTON, ESQ., EMC LEGAL COUNSEL
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16
17 f
18
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State af Alabama at Large 21
22
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Page 3 Page 4
1 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Let's get 1 in agreement to pass the motion, raise
2 started if we will. All ight. Welcome, 2 your hand.
3 everyone. I call the meeting to order. 3 (All Commission Members
4 And it Iooks like we have a 100% 4 rising hands).
5 attendance, so we do have a quorum. 5 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Thank-you.
6 All right. Agenda Item Number 1 6 All right. Item — Agenda Item
7 is consideration of the minutes and from 7 2 is Report from the Director, Lance.
8 the December 8th, 2023, Commission 8 MR. LEFLEUR: Good morning and
9 meeting. And I will entertain a motion 9 good morning to all who are in the room
10 fo — regarding those minutes. 10 today. :
11 DR. PERRY: Imove to adopt. 11 This is-the third meeting of the
12 DR. TUCKER: Second. 12 Alabama Environmental Management
13 MR. MCFADDEN: Move to adopt the 13 Commission for fiscal year 2024.
14 minutes of the December 8th, 2023, 14 It's my practice to periodically
15 Commission meeting as circulated is the 15 report on the state of the environment in
16 motion. 16 Alabarria to see if our efforts have
17 Do I have a second? 17 resulted in measurable improvemeants to the
18 DR. TUCKER: Second. 18 environment in our state. Today's report
19 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Any 19 will update you on the latest information
20 discussion or questions anybody has? 20 concerning the condition of Alabama's
21 (Mo response). 21 environment.
22 . MR. MCFADDEN: Allright. 1 22 In looking at the state of the
23 23 environment in Alabama, I'll also contrast

«call for the question. Everyone, who-is

oy
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1 the environmental quality data that can be 1 Today, we'll look at the state ]
2 measured to the public perceptions of the 2 of the environment in Alabama to see if 1
3 quality of the environment in Alabama. 3 the efforts have actually resulted in a
4 ' Tl also report on the status of our 4 measurably better quality environment in
5 Mobile Field Office. And finally, I'll 5 Alabama.
6 introduice oné of our personnel who has 6 The last report on the state of
7 achieved a significant professional 7 the environment was one year ago. The
8 milestone. B state of the environment takes the longer
9 The Department seeks to measure 9 view and compares the quality of Alabama's
10 its results in many ways. At the Qctober 10 envirenment when reliable records were !
11 23 Commission meeting, performance against 11 first available 20 to 30 years ago versus
12 the annual Operating Plan was analyzed. 12 where it is now to see if Alabama's
13 At the Commission meeting in April of 13 environment is improving,
14 2024, we:will do the annual review of the 14 The following series of slides |
15 EPA-generated quantitative comipliance and 15 will show that comparison for air, water,
16 enforcement metrics comparing all states. 16 and land media. Unlike the quantitative
17 When the EPA — When the EPA 17 performancé metrics available from EPA,
18 State Review Framework audit is performed 18 comparable environmental quality data from
19 every five years, as it was last year, 15 the other states is not available.
20 that information is also provided. And 20 In this report on the state of
21 then periodically we also review the 21 the-environment in Alabama, we'll do ]
22 latest information on the trends in the . 22 something a hittle different from past I;
23 environmental quality in Alabama, 23 years. We will'still review the quality
Page 7 Page 8
1 measures over the Jast 20 to 30 years, but 1 sulfur dioxide, fine ‘barticles, ozone, and
2 we will also-use information from a survey 2 lead. There is also a regional haze goal.
3 of public perceptions to see if the 3 Over time, most of the standards have been
4 public's perceptions match up with the 4 revised, each time becoming more
5 actual data. 5 stringent. In 2008; EPA set a 2018 goal
6 Every five years since 1998, the 6. for local reductions in haze,
7 Department has contracted with one-of our 7 As this slide shows, one by one
8 state universities o perform a survey of B Alabama has been able 1o attain individual
9 public perceptions regarding several 9 air quality standards statewide, even as
10 aspects of environmental quality in our 10 those standards have become tighter. The
11 state. The same questions are asked each 11 carbon menoxide standard was first met in
12 time to allow vs to see trends. The 12 1971. The NOx standard was also met back
13 participants do not know ADEM commissioned 13 in 1971; 802 in 1977.. The fine particles
14 the survey. As you will seg, the public 14 standard was first met in 2013 followed by
15 has both correct and incorrect 15 Ozone in 2014 and lead in 2015. In 2015,
16 perceptions: One of our endeavors is to 16 for the first time since the Clean Air Act
17 improve communications with the public and 17 was enacted in 1971, the state reached
18 help the public develop accurate 18 attainment for all air quality standards.
19 perceptions-about the state of the 19 In addition, Alabama met the 2018 regional
20 environment in Alabama. 20 haze goal in 2013, five years early.
21 We begin with air data: There 21 This graph shiows air emissions
2z are six basic air quality standards: 22 from major sources in Alabama since 1990.
23 Carbon monoxide, oxides of nitrogen, 23 The red arrows correspond to the date that
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1 particular standard was.achieved. The 1 the same, and about 13% think the air
2 carbon monoxide, NOx, and SO* arrows to- 2 quality has declined..
3 the left reflect that those standards were 3 Looking further into the
4 achieved prior to the 1990 timeframe for 4 public's perception, respondents were
5 the graph, while the three arrows to the 5 asked to choose from a multiple-choice i
6 riglit represent the fine particles, ozone, 6 list: "What is the biggest source of air t
7 and lead attainment dates of 2013, 2014, 7 pollution in Alabama?" From the ten
8 and 2015 respectively. As you can see, 8 choices available, the top thrée answers
9 emissions have declined materially and 9 were: 42% said industrial and power
10 improvement continues even after those 10 ‘plants are the largest sources of air
11 ever more stringent air quality standards 11 pollution, while 25% said motor vehicles,
12 were attained. 12 and about 11% said open burning of debris.
13 Overall, the trend of declining 13 In reality, during the summer
14 emissions last reported on the state of 14 ozone season, which is the time of primary
15 the environment in Alabama in 2023 15 air polittion concern, industrial and
16 continues. The air quality in Alabama 16 power plants accounted for less than
17 clearly has.improved since 1990, and it 17 one-half the amount of nitrogen oxide
18 continues to improve. 18 emissions, a precursor of ozone, as do
19 Our recent survey shows that 19 motor vehicles, 31% for industrial and
20 about 51% of the public correctly 20 power plants versus 65% for motor
21 perceived that the air quality in Alabama 21 vehicles.
22 has improved during their lifetime. About 22 As the actual data versus public i
23 36% think the air quality has stayed about 23 opinion shows, there is room for
Page 11 Page 12
1 improvement in educating the public. 1 With more contaminants to monitor, how
2 Moving on to-water data, the 2 well are the other water systems doing?
3 water media, we'll look at drinking water 3 In 1982, 82% of the water
4 data first because of its importance in 4 systems in Alabama were consistently in
5 that it directly impacts every individual 5 compliance with the standards for the 23
6 in Alabama. 6 regulated contaminants, Today, 98% of the
7 Potential contaminants in 7 water systems in Alabama are:continuously
8 drinking water fall into four categories: 8 in compliance with the health-based
% Organic chemicals, inorganic'chemicals, 9 standards for the 89 contaminants now
10 radionuclides, and microbes. In 1982, 10 regulated. This is the same as it was in
11 when the Department was created, there 11 2022. As T've noted in the past, only the
12 were 23 drinking water contaminants 12 state of Hawaii has had a lower humber of
13 regulated. That number is currently 89, 13 drinking water violations than here in
14 as it has been for several years, with 14 Alabama. The people of Alabama can have
15 most of the increase being in the organic 15 great confidence in the quality of their
16 chemicals catégory. We do expect an 16 drinking water.
17 increase of six in the number of drinking 17 Another measure of water quality
18 water contaminants regulated in the future | 18 looks at the impairments to surface waters
19 because of pending federally mandated 19 in the state. Section 303(d) of the Clean
20 maximum contaminant levels for per- and 20 Water Act calls for a listing of impaired
21 polyfluoroatkyl substances. 21 waterbodies, which are thos¢ not meeting
22 We're obviously regulating more 22 federally approved water quality standards
23 potential contaminants in drinking water. 23 for various pollutants, such as nutrients,
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1 pathogens, metals, and suspended solids. 1 combination miles of impaired rivers and
2 This chart couples both the area 2 " sireams as a result of 9000 combinaticn
3 of impairments and the number of 3 miles being removed from the list due to
4 pollutants. For example, if one mile of 4 improved water quality or being addressed
5 stream or one acre of surface water is 5 through development of a Total Maximum
6 impaired for nutrierits and pathogens, that: 6 Daily Load (TMDL) determination.. A TMDL
7 would be counted as two combination miles 7 sets strict limits for the discharge of
8 of impaired stream or two combination 8 pollutants into the assessed waterbody
9 acres of surface water. Twenty-five 9 that will bring that waterbody into
10 percent (25%) of the 59,000 miles of 10 compliance with water quality standards.
11 perennial rivers and streams and 93% of 11 During the period from 1998
12 the more than one million acres of lakes, 12 through 2023, more then 1.1 million
13 reservoirs, ocean, and estuaries in the 13 combination acres of impaired lakes,
14 state have now been fully assessed for 14 reservoirs, ocean, and estuaries were
15 impairment. Over the years, as more 15 added to the 303(d) list when identified.
16 waterbodies have been assessed, more 16 In 2023, there remained about
17 impairments have been identified and 17 660,000 combination acres of impaired
18 listed. 18 lakes, rivers, ocean, and estuaries asa
19 During the period between 19598 19 result of more than 450,000 combination
20 and 2023, more than 13,000 combination 20 acres being removed from the list due to
21 miles of impaired rivers and streams were 21 improved water quality or being addressed
22 identified and added to the 303(d) list. 22 by TMDL development. As with rivers and
23 In 2023, there remained about 4500 23 streams, this shows ongoing improvement.
Page 15 Page 16
1 Overall, impaired waterbodies 1 Alabama also has more than
2 have seen significant improvement over the 2 40,000 acres of exceptionally high quality
3 years and that improvement continues. 3 waters resulting from the manmade
4 Now, the 303(d) list identifics 4 impoundment of water courses into
5 impaired waterbodies. Waterbodics are 5 reservoirs with the Treasured Alabama
6 also tracked by an assigned designation or 6 Lakes designation.
7 use classification. The data in this 7 Conversely, at the other end.of
8 slide will go back to 1982, which is a bit 8 the scale, the number of miles of
9 further back than the previous slide. 9 watercourses in the lowest use
10 Looking at the three highest 10 classification, which is below fish and
11 classifications and designations: 11 wildlife classification and suitable only
12 Outstanding National Resource Waters; 12 for industrial and agricultural use, has
13 Outstanding Alabama Waters; and, Treasured 13 declined from more than 700 miles to just
14 Alabama Lakes, as you can see, in 1982, no 14 over 100 miles,
15 State waters were yet determined to have 15 Since 1982, Alabama has seen
16 met the requirements to be designated in 16 dramatic increase in waters qualifying for
17 the highest categories. 17 the highest quality designations and use
18 By 2023, Alabama was recognized 18 classifications and likewise a dramatic
19 to have a total-of more than 1100 miles 19 decrease in those falling into the lowest
20 and nearly 5600 acres in the two combined 20 classifications.
21 designations of natural waters of 21 As measured by drinking water,
22 outstanding quality that are considered 22 impaired waterbodies, and waterbody
23 important to Alabama and the nation. 23 designations and use classifications,
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1 water quality in Alabama is exceptionally 1 state-of-the-art lined MSW permitted
2 good and continues to.improve. 2 landfills handling-all the municipal solid
3 Looking at how the public 3 waste in Alabama.
4 perceives water quality improvement during 4 Alabama, like othier states, has
5 their lifetime, about 59% rated water 5 had to.deal with not only permitted
6 quality as improved, 28% saw no change, 6 ‘lendfills, but.also with unauthorized
7 and 13% rated water quality lower over 7 solid waste dumps.
8 their lifetime. 8 Since 2009, nearly 2300
9 The data shows.very clearly that 9 unauthorized solid waste dumps have been
10 water quality has been dramatically 10 remediated. This is up 3.3% over 2022.
11 improving, so there is an opportunity for 11 Nearly 1700 of those have been
12 us to get that message out more 12 remediated by actions against responsible
13 effectively..- 13 parties, while nearly 600, representing
14 Moving on to data from the land 14 innocent landowners, have been cleaned up
15 media, we begin by looking at landfills. 15 using funds provided by the one dollar per
16 Landfills are a necessary feature if we 16 ton fee on solid waste disposed of in
17 are to dispose of solid waste generated by 17 landfills, which was initiated in 2009.
18 each of us in a safe, efficient, and 18 The responsible party number is up 3.6%,
19 effective manner, 19 and the innocent landowner number is up
20 In 1989, Alabama had 141 unlined 20 2.4% compared to 2022,
21 municipal solid waste landfills. All of 21 In addition to safely disposing
22 those have been closed. 22 of solid waste, efforts have been
23 Today, there are 30 23 expanding to reduce the total amount.of
Page 19 Page 20
1 solid waste in Alabama by promoting 1 cleaned up is up 4% over what it was in i
2 recycling. ‘Once again, significant 2 2022.
3 progress has been made since our last 3 Today, solid waste in Alabama
4 report in 2023, just as it has.been in 4 environment is being dealt with
5 prior years, 5 responsibly.
6 The solid waste reduction rate 6 In the past, underground storage
7 in Alabama today is more than five tinies 7 tanks typically found at gas stations have
8 what it was in 1989 and has now surpassed 8 been subject to leaks due to corrosion or
] the 25% recycling goal set back in 1991 9 physical damage. Leaking petroleum
10 and compares very favorably with national 10 preducts contaminate both soil and
11 averages. The total recycling volume now 11 groundwater. New regulations and
12 comes to 3.9 million tons per year, about 12 technology now prevent or provide for
13 the same:as it was'in 2022. A robust 13 carly detection of leaks from tanks
14 recycling grant program administered by 14 installed in recent years, but many legacy
15 ADEM since 2010 has provided more than $30 15 sites exist in Alabama and throughout the
16 million in grants to help achieve this 16 nation. '
17 success. 17 ‘Since 1989, more than 12,400
18 Scrap tires-present special 18 leak sites bave been identified in
19 problems as fire hazards and breeding 19 Alabama. More than 11,500 — 93% of which
20 grounds for vectors. Since 2006, 386 20 is about the same as 2022 — have been
21 illegal scrap tire dumps containing more 21 cleaned up with 826 additional sites in
22 than 11 million tires have been cleaned 22 some stage of cleanup process.
23 up. Thenumber of scrap tire dumps 23 Groundwater contamination from
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1 underground storage tanks continues to 1 Work continues to identify,
2 decline. 2 enroll and clean up brownficld sites. The
3 This slide shows what's been 3 land returned to productive use is very
4 happening with other contaminated legacy 4 often in prime areas for future industrial
5 sites known as "brownfields." These most 5 development. Both the environment and
6 often are old industrial sites. As with 6 economic prospects in Alabama have been
7 underground storage tanks, new regulatory 7 improved since 2001 because of this
8 programs and technology have all but 8 program.
9 halted the creation of new brownfield 9 In the June 12th, 2023,
10 sites. 10 Commission meeting, I reported on
11 The Brownfields Program has 11 brownfields legislation enacted during the
12 identified 678 legacy brownfield sites in 12 2023 legislative session that provides new
13 Alabama. Since 2001, 448, or about 13 incentives intended to further accelerate
14 two-thirds of those sites, totaling 6400 14 the cleanup of old industrial sites. You
15 acres, have been returned to productive 15 will be considering rulemaking today to
16 use. This is a .9% increase in the number 16 ‘implement that new legislation.
17 of sites returned to productive use and a 17 Our public opinion survey did
18 .7% increase in acreage returned to 18 not have specific, direct questions about
19 productive use since 2022, 19 trends in the management of solid waste,
20 ‘Ninety-four (94) of the 20 but there were two questions that asked
21 remaining sites, totaling more than 8100 21 about the role of solid waste in
22 acres, are actively enrolled iri the 22 contributing to environmental quality.
23 Brownfields Program. 23 One question asked respondents
Page 23 Page 24 |
1 to choose from a multiple-choice list: 1 plausible answers to that question; but |
2 "What is the biggest source of water 2 despite the significant progress shown on
3 pollution in Alabama?" From the ten 3 the last few slides, various types of.
4 choices, the top four answers were illegal 4 solid waste are perceived as-the most
5 dumping of litter and waste by individuals 5 important environmental problem facing
6 at 33%, industrial plants at 21%, 6 Alabama today.
7 municipal sewage treatment plants at 10%, 7 The quality of Alabama's
8 and storm water at 8.4%. By far the 8 environment, as measured by declining air
9 largest source of water pollution in 9 emissions that now meet National Ambient
10 Alabama is, in fact, storm water rather 10 Alr Quality Standards, meeting or beating.
11 than illegal dumpirig of solid waste. 11 water quality standards and the extensive
12 The second question that 12 remediation of legacy solid waste
13 elicited a response directed at solid 13 contamination, has been improving
14 waste regarding environmental quality was 14 continuously over the years, and it has
15 also a multiple-choice question. When 15 continuied that improvement since we last
16 asked what the respondent thought the most 16 reviewed the data. Hard data shows the
17 important environmental problem facing 17 progress. Results are what we all look
18 Alabama today is, of the nine choices: 18 for, and this report is a look back at
19 Tilegal dumps, garbage, solid waste, and 19 some-highlights of achievements.and a
20 hazardous waste at 31%6 scored ahead of the 20 commitment to continue the work.
21 next two, water pollution at-about 20% and 21 The state of the environment in
22 air pollution at about 12%. 22 Alabama is much improved over what it was
23 Of course, there are several 23 20 to 30 years ago. It is improved over
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1 what it was in 2022, Our citizens breathe 1 may be, this repoit on the state of the
2 much cleaner air, have higher quality 2 environment looks at the entire state of
3 water, and can be assured that solid waste 3 Alabamna over time and that also factors in
4 management and contaminated land 4 the various violations of environmental
5 remediation have significantly progressed. 5 regulations.
6 The current state of the environment in 6 A final finding in our recently
7 Alabama is very good and overall trends 7 completed survey of public opinion on the
g8 are favorable. 3 environment in Alabama shows: Overall,
9 The Department regulates 35,000 9 86% of the public considers the quality of
10 facilities in Alabama. Occasionally, some 10 Alabama's environment to be good, while
11 of those 35,000 regulated facilities, as 11 12% consider it to be bad. With only 2%
12 well as entities not subject to ADEM 12 answering "don't know," it's pretty
13 regulatioh, encounter problems that result 13 obvious nearly everyone has an opinion.
14 in adverse environmental impacts. This is 14 Despite some misperceptions on
15 the case in every state in the nation. 15 varicus components of the environment,
16 Those affécted by such events clearly have 16 people in Alabama seem to agree with the
17 reason to be eoncerned. 17 actual data that the state of the
18 The Departmerit undertakes 18 environment in Alabamais good arid getting
19 enforcement when warranted and works with 19 better.
20 other federal, state and local 20 On February 1st, the Mobile
21 governmental organizations as necessary to 21 Field Office that has been under
22 undertake corrective measures. Unwelcomed 22 construction for nearly two years passed
23 as individual events causing great concem 23 the life, health and safety inspection by
Page 27 Page 28
1 the Alabama Department of Finance's 1 Dusiin, thank you — who recently i
2 Division of Construction Management, which 2 completed the rigorous requirements to
3 signaled substantial completion of the 3 earn the accreditation of Professional
4 facility. Move in has begun. There are 4 Engineer. Keep standing, Dustin.
5 several punch list items that are 5 (Applause).
6 anticipated to be completed in the next 30 6 MR. MCFADDEN: Congratu-
7 days. When the punch list is complete, a 7 lations.
8 ribbon cutting ceremony is planned, which 8 MR. STOKES: Thank you.
9 should be in mid-March. We will be 9 MR. MCFADDEN: Dustin, you're
10 sending out a notice of the date and time 10 now on the list of all plaintiff lawyers
11 about two weeks before the event. We will 11 in the state.
12 be arranging transportation for Commission 12 MR. LEFLEUR: That completes my
13 members who may be able to attend. 13 report for today. If there are any
14 As you'know, the Department 14 guestions, I'll be pleased to answer them.
15 encourages our personne! to undertake 15 MR. MCFADDEN: Does anyone have
16 professional development. It's an 16 any questions?
17 important clement-in cur unified strategic 17 (No respense).
18 plan and our annual operating plans. It's 18 MR. MCFADDEN: Good report,
19 also part of our plan to recognize those 19 Lance. Thank you very much.
20 who have achieved significant milestones 20 MR. L'EF}EUR: Okay. ‘Thank you.
21 in their professional development. I'm 21 MR. MCFADDEN: Allright. T had
22 pleased to introduce Dustin Stokes in our 22 Jjust a few short comments. Not'so mucha
23 Water Division, who recently — stand up, 23 report, but I'll just second what our
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1 Director has said. I was just sitting 1 to how well we do here compared to how
2 there when you were going through the 2 some other states handle their
3 stream classificdtions and the miles and 3 environmental issues, the pluses and the
4 all, of course, that was my little corner 4 minuses. I mean, we do a great job here
5 of this agency back in the early '80s. We 5 thanks to our good staff and leadership.
6 were measuring stream miles with a USGS 6 So —~ but in saying that, I've
7 quad map ---do you still do that, Jay? — 7 been on this Commission just a little over
8 and g little wheel thing, and I forgot the 8 a year, and Dr. Tucker is our newest
9 number. I think it was like 41,000 miles. 9 membet here. We're looking forward to him
10 I don't know, Jay, you may know what it 10 getting up to speed. You'll be voted on
11 is now, but it's a whole lot bigger than 11 next year and may end-up in this chair.
12 that. 12 There-was a hanging-chad issue or
13 So, when you add all that in, I 13 something in my vote, so I ended up here.
14 think those statistics are even more 14 But ] appreciate your confidence.
15 profound because most of those streams 15 And these folks are preat to
16 that were not picked-up by manual methods 16 work with. They all have the heart of
17 are in the rural, forested areas, which 17 this state as primary concemn. And we
18 were supposedly, you know, unimpaired or 18 don't get everything right. No agency
19 in great shape. 19 does, no department does or entity
20 So, I think we have come a long 20 anywhere, but they do. So; I appreciate
21 way. And I can tell you, I know JP back 21 the hard work.
22 here and others of you have worked in 22 And in that regard, sitting here
23 other states, and it's some stark contrast 23 observing for the last year, thinking what
Page 31 Page 32
1 might the public and you who attend, and a 1 But — so, that happens. And we
2 lot of you know this. But, like, when we 2 are really informed on the details of
3 come here and we vote on a couple of 3 everything that might come before this
4 things and we leave and go back to our 4 meeting and in the Department in general.
5 responsibilitics, we do. The meeting has 5 And then on 'top of that, we get
6 run very well and very economical thanks 6 daily and weekly news briefs that are put
? to Ms. Thomas over here and how she and 7 out by the Department. Debi, Ms. Thomas,
8 Ms. Cranage and the Director's Office and 8 over here gets us all correspondence that
9 others, Marilyn and, you know, others that 9 comes to the Commission and other
10 get the materials supplied to us. 10 correspondence that is relevant.
11 And so, what actually happens is 11 And so, we get a lot of
12 we spend about two hours, each of us 12 information before this meeting happens.
13 separately, meeting with the Director 13 So, when it gets time for the meeting, we
14 before this meeting, sometime in the 14 don't hold everybody up two or three hours
15 previous.week or ten days or two weeks. 15 and, you know, take more time than is
16 And if's not a-20-minute little sprint 16 needed and to give time for the puhlic and
17 just to say we met. It's like 8 marathon. 17 those who are signed up to speak, you
18 Lance should have been a preacher, I 18 know, have time to do that.
19 think. Reverend, he might take your job 19 So; I just thought you ought to
20 one day. 20 know that because sometimes optics are
21 REV. CODY GILLIAM: Hey, I've 21 different. Like, well, we come up here
22 got two churches. 22 once for ‘an hour, hour-and-a-half every
23 MR. MCFADDEN: He would be good. 23 other month and turn around and Jeave, but
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1 that is not the case, I can assure you. 1 the revisions to Division 1. The proposed
2 And it's been an honor-to do that, to hear 2 revisions include modifying, adding, and
3 how things are going in this state. They 3 deleting forms necessary for the
4 are going well, There can be 4 implementation of the Department's rules
5 improvements, as the Director has just 5 and regulations. In total, there were 24
6 said, and we all strive for that. And so, 6 forms that were modified, two forms were
7 we will continue on, 7 added, and three forms were deleted.
8 So, anyway, with that, I'll say 8 In addition, the Department is
9 no more and go to Item Number 4 I guess.it 9 proposing to revise ADEM Fee Schedule H,
10 is. ' 10 that is the Brownfield Redevelopment and
11 So, we're talking about the 11 Voluntary Cleanup Program. Those
12 consideration of adoption of proposed 12 revisions proposed to establish the
13 amendments to ADEM Administrative Code 13 Brownficld Remediation Reserve Fund, and
14 335-1, which is the General Administration 14 that is in accordance with the new
15 Regulations. And so, we will hear from 15 legislative Act of 2023-356 passed this
16 the Department. 16 previous legislative session.
17 MR. KELLY: Good moming, Mr. 17 The Department is also proposing
18 Chairman, members of the Commission. I'm 18 to add Administrative Coder. 335-1-5in
19 Russell Kelly, Chief of the Permits and 19 order to adopt a Title VI grievance
20 Services Division. 20 procedure for the Department under 40 CFR
21 Like you say, we're here with 21 Section 7.9. Further changes are proposed
22 Division 1 before you. The Department 22 to the Administrative Code relating to the
23 held a public hearing on December 14th for 23 Title V emission fee language in order to
Page 35 Page 36
1 remain consistent with the Federal rules. 1 makes the language consistent with where
2 During the public comment 2 the Federal language is at this time.
3 period, there were no comments received. 3 MR. MCFADDEN: Good. Thank you.
4 Therefore, at this time, I request your 4 Anybody else?
5 favorable consideration and answer any 5 (No response).
6 questions. 6 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Thank you
7 MR. MCFADDEN: How does this 7 very much.
8 affect overall finding in your section, 8 MR. KELLY: Thank you, Mr.
9 Russell? 9 Chairman. Thank you very much.
10 MR. KELLY: The Title V? It 10 MR. MCFADDEN: Thank you.
11 doesn't. Basically, what's happened here 11 All right. So, you heard from
12 is, through time, the Federal regulations 12 Mr. Kelly, and I'll entertain a motion now
13 are always amended and changed. Some are 13 from the proposed amendments — regarding
14 more critical than others, Some are more 14 the proposed amendments to the General
15 time sensitive. 15 Administration Regulations. DoIhavea
16 So, at various times, we will go l6 motion?
17 into any of the regulations and make sure 17 MR. MASINGILL: I'move we adopt
18 that the language mimics the Federal 18 the proposed amendments.
19 language:. We do that quite often so that 19 MS. MERRITT: Second.
20 we're consistent. As I said, sometimes 20 MR. MCFADDEN: I have a motion
21 it's more critical than others. This one, 21 and a second, Any discussion regarding
22 not all that critical. It doesn't change 22 it?
23 the Title V assessment at all. It simply 23 (No response).

J
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1 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Hearing 1 MR..COBB: Yes. Thank you, Mr,
2 none, T'l] call for thé question. All 2 Chairman, and good moming, Commissioners.
3 those in favor of the motion, raise your 3 I'm Steven Cobb, Chief of the Land
4 hand, please. 4 Division,
5 (All Commission Members 5 I come today to recommend that
6 raising hands). 6 the Commission adopt amendments to the
7 MR. MCFADDEN: And all opposed? 7 Department's Division 15, Brownfield
8 (No response). 8 Redevelopment and Voluntary Cleanup
9 MR. MCFADDEN: 8o, unanimous. 9 Program Regulations.
10 And we'll sign'some paperwork. 10 Revisions to this division are
11 {Commission Members signing 11 being proposed to comply with updated
12 paperwork). 12 state law from the 2023 Alabama
13 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Paperwork 13 legislative session. These new rules
14 is done. It's done when the paperwork is 14 establish the administrative procedures —
15 done, right? 15 guidelines and procedures to allow for
16 Okay. I guess we're on Agenda 16 reimbursements from the Brownfield
17 Number 5, if ] haven't lost track already. 17 Remediation Regerve Fund and amend the
18 The Chair notes that Agenda Item 5 is 18 limitation of liability qualifications for
19 consideration of adoption of the proposed 19 responsible party applicants, as well as
20 amendments to ADEM Administrative Code 20 amending release reporting obligations.
21 335-15, the Browntfield Redevelopment and 21 The revisions also include several
22 Voluntary Cleanup Program Regulations. 22 typographical and citation updates in the
23 Mr. Cobb. 23 existing regulations.
Page 39 Page 40
1 The proposed regulations were 1 in place a procedure by which responsible
2 the subject of a public comment period 2 parties, who apply and participate in the
3 which ran from QOctober 25th to December 3 Voluntary Cleanup Program, can accrue
4 14th of 2023. Public hearing was held at 4 certain liability protections which
5 the Department on December 14. No oral 5 protects future purchasers against changes
6 comments were received duzing the hearing 6 in the standards that would apply to a
7 and one written comment was received 7 given facility after a cleanup has been
8 during the public comment period. 8 done. I believe the goal of that was to
9 Based on the comment received, 9 encourage more participation in the
10 no changes were made to the proposed 10 Voluntary Cleanup Program and provide more
11 -regulations. ‘'The Department's response to 11 regulatory certainty for future owners of
12 the comment received has been provided to 12 that property.
13 the Commission. 13 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. And did I
14 The revised regulations are 14 remember correctly that actually can be
15 presented today for your consideration, 15 handed down to the heirs and successors?
16 and we ask that you adopt the proposed 16 MR. COBB: Yes.
17 changes to Division 15. I'm happy to 17 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Good. Any
18 answer any questions that you might have, 18 other questions for Mr. Cobb?
19 MR. MCFADDEN: You mentioned an 19 (No response).
20 amended liability clause. Can you just 20 MR. MCFADDEN: Thank you, Steve.
21 briefly explain what was different, what 21 MR. COBB: Thank you.
22 they amended? 22 MR. MCFADDEN: All right. We do
23 MR. COBB: The legislation put 23 have a motion — or necd a motion here to
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1 adopt the proposed amendments to the 1 paperwork).
2 Brownfield Redevelopment and Voluntary 2 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Thank you.
3 Cleanup Program Regulations. Do I havea 3 All right. Agenda Item Number
4 motion? 4 6, Other Business. Any other business to
5 MR. MASINGILL: 1 move to adopt 5 come before the Commission?
o the proposed amendments. 6 (No response):
7 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. 7 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Not
8 DR. TUCKER: Second. 8 hearing any.
9 MR. MCFADDEN: I have a motion 9 Ttern Number 7, Future Business.
10 and a second. Any additional discussion 10 Noting the date of the next Commission
11 on that from anyone? 11 meeting is April 12th, 2024. Is everyone
12 (No response). 12 available if you know that now for that
13 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. No 13 meeting?
14 discussion. Then I'll call for the 14 DR. TUCKER: Yes.
15 question. -All in favor, raise your hand. 15 MS. MERRITT: Yes.
16 (All Commission Members l6 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. We may be
17 raising hands). 17 one of two short pending medical
18 MR. MCFADDEN: All opposed? 18 appointments. So, let us know as we get
19 (No response). 13 closer to time if there's a problem so we
20 MR. MCFADDEN: It's unanimous 20 avoid not having a quorum if we can at
21 and the motion carries, Sign some more - 21 all,
22 papers. 22 All right. Okay. Let's see.
23 (Commission Members signing 23 Did I skip something here? No.
Page 43 Page 44
1 Now we're in the Public Comment 1 stuff right there.
2 Period. Inote that there has been one 2 ‘MR. MCFADDEN: I'm going to say
3 persbn register from the public that has 3 we need a big gong, don't we?
4 signed up to make a brief statement. The 4 REV, CODY GILLIAM; Well, 'm
5 Chair notes it there, I'll call them that 5 the pastor of Belle Mina Methodist Church
6 person in just a second as the names 6 and Walnut Grove Cumberland Presbyterian
7 appear on the register, which is just one. 7 Church. 1like to tell people at 9:00
8 So, that shouldn't be a problem. ] am., I'm a Methodist, but at 11:00 am.,
8 And I want to just note that the 9 I'm a Presbyterian.
10 speakers are encouraged to limit their 10 MR. MCFADDEN: Well, you are
11 statements to matters that directly relate 11 free to ask them for that.
12 to the Commission functions and ask to 12 REV. CODY GILLIAM: So,I'm
13 observe a three-minute time limit or the 13 happy to be here with you, Yeah. I'm
14 gong will come out. 14 happy to be with you today off of my
15 So, names on — the name, if I 15 circuit. I'm a dying breed, a circuit
16 can find my paperwork, is Reverend Cody 16 rider. I want to tell you a little bit
17 Gilliam, Did I say that right, Reverend? 17 about Belle Mina.
18 REV. CODY GILLIAM: You got 18 Belle Mina was once considered
19 close enough, sir. 19 for the State Capitol of Alabama, but Old
20 MR. MCFADDEN: Allright, All 20 Cahaba beat us out. So, we didn't get
21 right. _ 21 that distinction. But the second governor
22 REV.CODY GILLIAM: Giving a 22 of Alabama owned a plantation there called
23 preacher three minutes, man, that's hard 23 Belle Manor, but they came through with a
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1 railroad and asked people there what the 1 was one of the best things to ever happen
2 name of that plantation was. They said, 2 to racial justice laws in our country.
3 Belle Mina. And so, the name stuck. And 3 Along with that is a population
4 then they started calling the plantation 4 of people that are impoverished and that
5 Belle Mina and the town Belle Mina. 5 descend from former slaves, and they live
6 That arca is enriched in 6. right across the street from where this
7 history. People have lived there since 7 quarry is going to go. And I just noticed
8 before the Stone Age, and people continue 8 you spent a whole lot of time, Mr.
9 to live there. Of course, Thomas Bibb and 9 Director, on PR, and let me tell you
10 some othér chafaqters, like the Sleeping 10 something, if this thing goes in, it won't
11 Preacher of North Alabama ended up there. 11 be good PR for you. It won't be good PR
12 And he's done some things that I won't 12 for ADEM. It will be very, very pocor PR 1
13 scare you with, but I want to encourage 13 for everyone.
14 you to look him up a little bit, 14 1 think everyone involved
15 But a little more modem history 15 doesn't want this to happen. Everyone
16 is, Judge Horton was a member of my church 16 involved wants this to go away. AndI
17 at Belle Mina Methodist Church. And if 17 just really want to do-one thing today,
18 you don't know who Judge Horton was, then 18 and that's thank ADEM for extending the
18 you need to look up the Scottsboro boys' 19 public eomment period. Iknow you guys
20 case. It was a very important case in 20 get beat up a lot, but we just wanted to
21 Alabama. :And he went to our kneeling rail 21 comé and thank you, and we appreciate how
22 and prayed to God to lead him in that 22 you're doing your job.
23 fight. And we believe that what he did 23 And [ just want to say, Mr,
Page 47 Page 48
1 McKinstry; I like your jacket there. 1 1 encourage that. So, thank you again.
2 feel like we might have similar taste. 2 And that's all we had on that
3 And Ijust want to thank 3 part of the agenda. So, we are basically
4 everyone for this time, Look at me, I 4 ready to adjourn.
5 even only didn't even use all'my time. 5 MR. BROWN: So move.
6 But thank you so much for 6 MR. MCFADDEN: So, once someene
7 letting me come and let me speak to you 7 has a motion. That didn't take long,
8 and just wanted to bring awareness to this 8 All right. A motion to adjourn.
8 potential PR problem that you might have. 9 A second?
10 MR. MCFADDEN: Thank you, 10 DR. PERRY: Second.
11 Reverend. We appreciate your comments. 11 MR. MCFADDEN: Okay. Ms. Ruby
12 And, yeah, we take 2ll that very 12 seconded the motion. And any discussion
13 seriously, and we'll do our best in the 13 on the adjournment?
14 Department to do what the law requires and 14 (No response).
15 the best we can, So, thank you. 15 MR. MCFADDEN: If not, all those
16 And that; we want to, as just an 16 in favor, raise your hand.
17 added statement to — not that particular, 17 (All Commission Members
18 but communication with the Department and 18 raising hands).
19 even the Commission is encouraged. 1 19 MR. MCFADDEN:. All opposed?
20 think we had'a meeting here a couple of 20 (No response).
21 days ago with some environmental groups 21 MR. MCFADDEN: So it passes.
22 with the Department that talk over issues. 22 We're adjourned.
23 And:so, we certainly want to 23 Thank you-gll for coming.
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AGENDA*
MEETING OF THE
ALABAMA ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT COMMISSION
DATE: February 9, 2024
TIME: 11:00 a.m.

LOCATION: Alabama Department of Environmental Management (ADEM} Building

Alabama Room (Main Conference Room)
1400 Coliseum Boulevard
Montgomery, Alabama 36110-2400

ITE

1. Consideration of minutes of meeting held on December 8, 2023**

2. Report from the ADEM Director

3. Report from the Commission Chair

4, Consideration of proposed amendments to ADEM Administrative Code
Division 335-1, General Administration Regulations

5. Consideration of proposed amendments to ADEM Administrative Code
Division 335-15, Brownfield Redevelopment and Voluntary Cleanup Program
Regulations

6. Other business

7. Future business session

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Brief statements by members of the public registered to speak

under Environmental Management Commission.

** The Minutes for this meeting will be available on the ADEM website

under Environmental Management Commission.

1/10/24

PAGE

* The Agenda for this meeting will be available on the ADEM website, www.adem.alabama.gov,
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CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON DECEMBER 8, 2023

REPORT FROM THE ADEM DIRECTOR

REPORT FROM THE COMMISSION CHAIR

CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ADEM ADMINISTRATIVE CODE DIVISION
335-1, GENERAL ADMINISTRATION REGULATIONS

The Commission will consider amendments to ADEM Administrative Code Division
335-1, General Administration Regulations. Revisions to the Division 1 Code are being
proposed to incorporate changes to Schedule H- Brownfield Redeveiopment and Voluntary
Cleanup Program. These changes are necessary to comply with recent statutory changes.
In addition, this modification will also address Title V emission fees, Title VI grievance
procedures, and departmental forms by adding, modifying, and/or deleting certain forms.

“The Department held a public hearing on the proposed amendments on December 14, 2023.

CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ADEM ADMINISTRATIVE CODE DIVISION
335-15, BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AND VOLUNTARY CLEANUP PROGRAM REGULATIONS

Theé Commission will consider amendments to ADEM Administrative Code Division
335-15, Brownfield Redevelopment and Voluntary Cleanup Program Regulations. Revisionsto
the Division 15 Code are being proposed to incorporate needed updates from state statutory
changes. The Department held a public hearing on the proposed amendments on December 14,
2023,

OTHER BUSINESS

FUTURE BUSINESS SESSION
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PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

BRIEF STATEMENTS BY MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC REGISTERED TO SPEAK

Members of the public that wish to make a brief statement at a Commission meeting may do so
by first signing in on a register maintained by the Commission office prior to each regularly scheduled
meeting. The register will close ten minutes prior to convening each méeting of the Commission.
Following completion of all agenda items, the Commission Chair will call on members of the public
wishing to make a statement in-the order their names appear on the register. Speakers are encouraged
to limit their statement to matters that directly relate to the Commission’s functions. Speakers wiil be
asked to observe a three minute time limit. While an effort will bé made to hear all members of the
public signed on the register, the Commission may place reasonabie limitations on the number of
speakers to be heard. {Guideline 11, Guidelines for Public Comment).

The Guidelines for Public Comment are used in the application of ADEM Administrative Code
335-2, Environmental Management Commission Regulations, Rule 335-2-3-.05, Agenda and Public
Participation. The Guidelines for Public Comment serve to educate and inform the public as to how the
Commission:interprets and intends to apply the Rule. The revised Rule 335-2-3-.05 was effective.
October 7, 2016. ’
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT COMMISSION
RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management gave notice of a
public hearing on the proposed revisions to ADEM Admin. Code 335-1 of the Department’s
Administrative Division — General Administration Rules in accordance with Ala: Code § 22-22A-
8 (2006 Rplc. Vol.) and Ala. Code § 41-22-4 (2060 Rple. Vol.); and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before a representative of the Alabama Department
of Environmental Management designated by the Environmental Management Commission for

the purpose of receiving data, views and arguments on the amendment of such proposed rules; and

WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Environmerital Management has reviewed the oral -
and written submissions introduced into the hearing record, and has prepared a concise statement
of the principal reasons for and against the adoption of the proposed rules incorporating therein its
reasons for the adoption of certain revisions to the proposed rules in response to oral and written
submissions, such revisions, where appropriate, having been incorporated into the proposed rules

attached hereto; and

- WHEREAS, the Environmental Management Commission has considered fully all oral and
written submissions respecting the proposed amendments and the Reconciliation Statement.

prepared by the Alabama Department of Environmental Management.

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to Ala. Code. §§ 22-22A-5, 22-22A-6, 22-22A-8 (2006
Rple. Vol.), and Ala. Code. § 41-22-5 (2000 Rple. Vol.), as duly appointed members of the
Environmental Management Commission, we do hereby adopt and promulgate these revisions to-
division_ 335-1 [rules 335-1-1-.07/ Departmental Forms, Instructions, and Procedures (Amend);
335-1-6-.07 (Fee Schedule E)/ Payment of Fees (Amend)] of the Department’s Administrative
Division — General Administration Rules, administrative code attached hereto, to become effective
forty-five days, unless otherwise indicated, after filing with the Alabama Legislative Services
Agency.

Page 1 of 3



ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT COMMISSION
RESOLUTION

ADEM Admin. Code division 335-1 — of the Department’s Administrative Division — General

Administration Rules

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, we have affixed our signatures below on this 9" day of
February, 2024.

“A. Frank Mclkadden, Lommissioner

DISAPPROVED:

viary J. mvierniu, Commissioner H. Lanier Brown, II, Commissioner
J. Patrick Tucker, Commissioner Kevin McKinstry, Commissioner
John {(Jay) H. Masingill, I1I, Commissioner Ruby L. Perry, Commissioner

A. Frank McFadden, Commissioner

Page 2 of 3



ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT COMMISSION

ABSTAINED:

Mary J. Merritt, Commissioner

J. Patrick Tucker, Commissioner

John (Jay) H. Masingill, ITI, Commissioner

A, Frank McFadden, Commissioner

RESOLUTION

H. Lanier Brown, I1, Commissioner

Kevin McKinstry, Commissioner

Ruby L. Perry, Commissioner

This is to certify that this Resolution is a true and accurate
account of the actions taken by the Environmental

Maﬁﬁ :j? Mo this 9th day of February 2024.
5?

A. Frank McFadden, Chair
Environmental Management Commission
Certified this 9th day of February 2024
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| ATTACHMENT A

335-1-1-.07 Departmental Forms, Instructions, And
Procedures.

(1) Designation as the State Environmental Control Agency. The
Department is the State Environmental Control Agency for the
purposes of federal environmental law including the Federal
Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7401 et seg., as amended; the Federal
Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., as amended; the Federal
Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. & 201 et seq., as amended.

The Department is authorized to take all actions necessary and
appropriate to secure the benefits of federal environmental
laws. The Department operates in conformity with such federal
laws, policies, and procedures, as provided in the Act.

(2) Policies and Procedures. The Commission, through the
adoption of rules pursuant to Code of Ala. 1975, §22-22a-7 (c)
(6), establishes environmental policies and procedures.

(3) Form and Instructions. The Director may require such forms
within the rules as he deems necessary. The content of such
forms and instructions for their completion may be prescribed by
the Director including the changes of such from time to time.
Federal forms as published by the Environmental Protection
Agency may be used in lieu of state developed forms.
Departmental forms prescribed by the Director shall be
identified and numbered as follows:



Pame of Forms Eorm
I‘I"'lher
Air Program
Specificaticns for Air Curtain Incinerateors M-1 17
MEMFE Vendor Application 39
Registration Form for the Constructinn  Trnetrallatian 52
or Modification of an Incinerator M
Operating Permit Application Facili 103
[.
Lol AL lcaLduUle LWL Ltinusrelth HeatiNg Equipment M- 104
Permit Applir-ation for Manufacturing or Processing 105
Pperation M
Permit Appl..acion for Waste Disposal M 106
Permit Ap~'i-~ation for Stationary Internal Combustion [107
Engines M
Permit Am o ation for T.oadina ard Stoarace of Oroanpnic 108
109
e S U UV 110
Device M-
Permit Ap,..caticn for Solvent Metal Cleaning M 112
Seal Gap Test Form M 184
Air Permit Annlication for Gasoline Dispensing 187
Facilities M
Gasoline Tra..p.rt Tank Truck Application M 158
Cargo Tank Tightness Test Report M-1 309
Bulk (Gascline) Plant Application M=2 331
Emissions Statement Reporting Form M-1 372
xcess Emission Monitoring Report 373
Exemption Claim Form for Cocfired Combustors {Appendix H|374
- Divisicn 3) M-1
Exemption Claim Form for Incinerators Burning Only 375
.athological, Low-Level Radicactive, and
Chemotherapeutic Waste (Appendix 3 - Division 3) M-1
Gascline Dispensing Facility Information Survey M-1 378
Open Burning Incident Report 434
Perc Dry Cleaner Status Update M-1 436
Permit Applicetion for Compliance Schedule M 437




Permit Applicaticn for Continuous Emission Monitoring
Systems (CEMS

438

Petrcleum Solveunc vury Cleaning Questionnaire M-1 440
Remediation Approval Form M=2 448
Remediation Reporting Form M-2 449
112(]j) Part 1 Applicability Notification 493
Birmingham Fuel Supplier Report M-1 494
Notice of Demeolition ard/or Asbestos Remove M-1 496
Asbestos Removal Contractor Certification 497
Visible Emission Field Test Sheet 502
Ci.... Permit Application (for sources covered under a 519
CATIR SIP)

Coastal Program

Joint Application and Notification U. S. Department of (166
Army, Corps cof Engineers Alabama Department of
~yironmental Management M-3

n1abama Coastal Area Management Program Application for|316
Approval of a Non-Regulated Use ADEM Administrative

Code rule 335-8-~1-.11 Groundwater Extraction 50 PM or
Greater M-1

Application for a Permit for the Construction for a 327
Motel, Hotel, or Other Multi-Unit Development on a
Property Intersected by the Construction Contrcl Line

in the Alabama Coasta. Area M-1

Application for a Permit for the Censtruction of 328
Single-Family Dwellings, Duplexes, or Other Similar
Structures on Propertles Intersected by the

Cornstruction Control Line in the Alakbama Ccastal Area

M-1

Application for Approval of a Non-Regulated Use in the |329
2labama Ccastal Area

Developments and Subdivisions of Property Greater than

5 Acres in Size M-1

Waste/Remediation Program

Alabama Recycling Fund Grant Application M-2 )
Solid Waste Landfill Operator Initial Certification 11
Applicaticon

Solid Waste Landfill Operator Recipreocal Certification (12
Application

S0lid Waste Landfill Cperator Certification Renewal 13




Processing ana Recyciing General Information Recycling [15
Registration M-=2
Annual Recycling Report 16
Composting Facility Applicatic 18
UST Annual Walkthrough Inspection Checklisct Log M-3 19
UST 3 Year Spill Prevention Equipment (spill Bucket) 20
ﬁntegrity Test Report (Hydrostatic and Vacuum Method)

-3
UST Alabama Tank Trust .and Cost Proposal Part I M il
UST Alabama Tank Trust Fund Payment Regquest Part I i2
Disposal Approval Request M-1 278
UST Notification for Underground Storage Tanks M-4 279
UST Notification for Above Ground Storage Tanks M-4 283
Solid Waste Prcfile Sheet M-3 300
SARA Title III Section 302: Extremely Hazardous 302
Substance Notification M-1

Permit Application Solid Waste Disposal Facility 305
Construction/Demolition Landfill M-2
UST Nctice of Temporary Closure M-2 310
Alabama Hazardous Waste/Used 0il Transporter Permit 317
Application M-2
Alternative Medical Waste Treatment Technology 323
Equipment Approval Application
UST Annual Statistical Inventory Reconciliation {SIR) 326
Report Form M-2
Application for Name Change or Transfer of Permit or 330
Exempticn M-5
UST Cathodic Protection Monitoring Form M-2 332

UST Impressed Current Cathodic Protection System 60- _ay
Inspection Log M-1

400

UST Interior Lining Inspection Form 403
UST Interior Lining Report Form 404
UST Manual Interstitial Monitoring Monthly Log M-1 406
SARA Title III Secticon 311: SDS/MSDS Reportinc M-1 407

410
MoulCd L WasLe LIdlbpPul Lel FelllL ApPULlcdLloll m=2 411
Medical Waste Treatment Permit Application M-5 412
Medical Waste Storage Permit Applicaticn 413




UST 30 Day Statistical Inventory Reconciliation (SIR) 414
Log M=3

UST Notice cof Intent to Permanently Close Underground 422
Storage Tanks or Piping M~4

UST Notice of Proposed UST New Installation or 423
Modificaticn M-5

Notification of Election of Coverage under The Alabama (425
Drycleaning Environmental Response Trust Fund Act M-3
Permit Application Solid Waste Disposal Facility M-2 439
UST Statistical Inventory Reconciliation SIR 7 Day 460
Release Investigation Report M-3

UST Tank Trust Fund Eligibility / Ineligibility 462
Determinaticn Form M-1

UST Underground and Above Ground Storage Tank Transfer 469
of Qwnership M-3

UST ARBCA Tier 1 Report Forms 471
UST ARBCA Tier 2 Report Forms 472
UST ARBCA Tier 3 Report Forms 473
UST Closure Site Assessment Report Form M-4 474
UST Free Product Recovery Report Form 475
UST Groundwater Monitcring Report Form M-=1 476
UST Line Tightness Test Report Form M-3 4.)
UST Natural Attenuation Monitoring Report Form 478
UST Release Fact Sheet 479
UST Release Report Form M-3 480
UST Site Classification System Checklist 481
UST System Effectiveness Monitoring Report Form 482
UST Tracer Tank Tightness Test Report Form M=2 483
UST Ullage Tank Tightness Test Report Form M-2 484
UST Tank Tightness Test (Vacuum) Report M=-3 485

UST Volumetric Overfill Tank Tightness Test Report Form
-2

486

Scrap Tire Fund Remediation Center M-1

UST Volumetric Underfill Tank Tightness Test Report 487
Form M-1

UST Closure Total Potential VOC Emissions Calculations (492
Voluntary Cleanup Program Application M 521
Technical Proposal for Qualification as a Large Site 530




Scrap Tire Manifest M-4 536
Scrap Tire Reglstraticrn & Exemption Application M-=7 537
Scrap Tire Transporter Permit Application M-8 538
Scrap Tire Quarterly Report M-6€ 539
Scrap Tire Processor Permit Application M=7 540
Scrap Tire Site Registration M-1 541
Brownfields State Revolving Fund Pre-Application Form [542
M-1

Brownfields State Revclving Fund Application Form M-1 (543
Cathodic Protection Menitoring for Galvanic Systems M-2(545
Alabama Hazardous Waste Receipt for Samples and 546
Documents

Brownfields Assessment Request Application M=1 550
UST Line Leak Detectcr (LLD) Test Report M-3 551
UST 3 Year Containment Sump Integrity Test Report (Low 556
Level Metheod) M-1

UST 3 Year Containment Sump Integrity Test Report M-1 [557
UST 30 Day Walkthrough Inspection Checklist Log M=-2 558
UST 3 Year Overfill Prevention Eguipment Inspection 559
Report M-2

UST Annual Probe and Senscor Test Report M-1 560
UST Annual Release Detection Equipment Operation and 561
Calibration Testing Lcg M-2

UST Compatibility Demcnstration Log M-1 562
ST Manual Tank Gauging Monthly Log M-1 563
UST Annual Liquid Sensor Inspection and Functiconality |[564
Test M-1

UST Annual Tank Gauge Test Report M-1 565
UST Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD) and Line 566
Tightness Test Report M-1

Application for Facility Name Change or Transfer of 568
Sclid Waste Dispeosal Facility Permit

Beneficial Use Facility Reglstration Application M=1 569
Beneficial Use Annual Reportin 5
Nntificatrinn nf Remmlatrerd Waste Artivitas 8700-12

Efter Program




Drinking Water - Groundwater System Monthly Operational
Data Report M-1

Information Neeaed for 316(b) Determination in Regard (14
to General NPDES Permits
Notice of Termination NPDES General Permit Number 21
ALRIQCO00D M-2
NPDES Construction Stormwater Inspection Report and BMP|23
Certification M-1
Notice of Intent NPDES General Permit Number ALRIQ000C lza
(Constructicn Stormwater} M-3
NPDES Construction Stormwater Noncecmpliance 25
Notification M=1
Notice of Intent-NPDES General Permit Number ALGS8S50000 26
M-4
Drinking Water - Operaticnal Evaluation Level 27
Exceedance Report M-2
Notice of Intent-General Permit Number ALG870000 28
{Pesticides) M=2
ADEM NPDES Pesticide Adverse Incident Report M-1 29
Notice ¢f Termination - NPDES General Permit Number 30
ALGET70000 M-1
EDWRS Permittee Registration Form 33
ECWRS Lab Registration Form 34
EDWRS Terms and Conditions Agreement 35
Drinking Water - Total Coliform Rule - Level 1 36
Assessment M-2
Drinking Water - Total Coliform Rule - Level 2 37
Assessment M-2
Crinking Wate:

- Notification of Intent to Drill a 60
YWa LT L L g Wy
Drinking Water - Purchase Water System Monthly 185
Operaticn Report M-1
State Indirect Discharge (SID) Permit Applicaticn M-6 [186
NPDES Individual Permit Application Supplementary 187
Informaticn for Industrial Facilities M-7
NPDES Individual Permit Application Supplementary 188
Information for Publicly-Owned Treatment Works (POTW),
Other Treatment Works Treating Domestic Sewage
{(TWTDS), and Public Water Supply Treatment Plants M-4
Permit Applicaticn of Reclaimed Water Reuse (RWR) 189
Application for Alakama Well Driller’s License M-1 193




Water Well Driller Reciprocal Application

194

Modification Addendum M-=-2

Water Well Standards Procgram License Renewal 195
Drinking Water - Filter Plant Monthly Operaticonal Data 242

Rennrt M-1

Drinxing Water - Menthly Membrane Surface Plant 243

Operational Data Report M-1

Drinking Water - Application for Approval to Use a 259

Water Supply Well

Alternative Analysis 311

Calculation of Total Annualized Project Cost for 312
Public-Sector Projects

Calculation of Total Arnualized Project Cost for 313
Private-Sector Projects

ADEM Baseline Monitoring Report Submittal Form 314

NPDES Individual Permit Application (Mining Operations) |315
-6

iAnnual Certificaticn Form for Discharges Associated 324

with Petroleum 3Stcrage and Handling Areas M-2

Drinking Water - Chemical Monitoring Data Report M-1 335
Drinking Water - Chemical Monitoring Waliver Application|336

M-1

Clean Water State Revclving Fund (CWSRF) Loan 339

Applicatinn Form M-3

Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) Preapplication|340

Form M-4

Coalbed Methane Stormwater Inspection Summary Report 343

M-1

Coalbed Methane Temporary Pit Wastewater Land 344

Application Certification Report M-1

Drinking Water -~ Commurity Public Notification 345

Certification Form

Drinking Water - Community System Susceptibility 346

Analysis Sheet M-1

Drinking Water - Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) 347

Certification Form M-2

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan 369

Applicaticn Form M-3

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund ({(DWSRE 370
Preapplication Form M-4

NPDES Individual Permit Application Addendum M-1 376

NFDES Individual Permit Application Minor Permit 377




Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG110000

380

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG120000

381

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG140000

382

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG150000

383

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG160000

384

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG170000

385

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG180000

386

of

Intent—-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG020000

387

of

Intent-~NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG200000

388

l...l
Q
®

T 5|

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG230000

389

Q
'_l
Q
®

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG240000

390

"
Q
]

i?%?ﬁff?

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG250000

391

(o}
R
Q
1)

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG280000

392

O
'_l
0
1

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG0O30000

393

R
Q
D

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG340000

394

0
e
Q
o

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG360000

395

Q

]
lﬂgmﬁmﬁhﬂmﬁmﬁ‘hﬂthﬁh
Q
0]

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Number

ALG060000

396

otice
-4

ETZETETET??FETE7ZE?E?

of

Intent-NPDES

General

Permit

Nunmber

ALG670000

397

M-1

Drinking Water - Lead and Copper Monitoring Data Report

405

Material Safety Data Sheet Reporting

407

Drinking Water - Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level
Input Form (Samples) M-1

408

Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SS0) Event Reporting Form M-4

415

Package M-1

Municipal Water Pollution Prevention (MWPP) Annual
Report (Collection Systems)

416

Municipal Water Pollution Prevention (MWPP) Annual
Report Package M-3

417




Municipal Water Pollution Prevention Resolution Form

418

MWPF Sewage Sludge Survey M-1 419
Drinking Water - Non-Community Public Notification 420
Certification Form

NPDES/SID Non-Compliance Notification Form M-4 421
NPDES Annual Notice of Registration (NOR) 429
NPDES Individual Permit Pollution Abatement / Treatment 432
Measures and Sediment Control Structures Certification
Report M-2

NPDES Permitted Coalbed Methane Operations Pollution 433
Abatement/Treatment Measures and Waste Treatment
Facilities Certification Report M-1

Operator Certification Renewal Form M-1 435
Plant and Collection System Personnel Inventory 441
Drinking Water - Potable Water Laboratory Certificationl|442
Application M-3 “

Drinking Water - Progress Report Form M-1 443
Drinking Water - Project Completion Form M-2 444
Release Information Form 447
Representative Stormwater Outfall Certification M-3 450
Request for NPDES Permit Post-Mining Discharge 451
Limitations (Coal Mining Operations) M-2

Request for Release from NPDES Permit Monitoring and 452
Reporting Requirements {(Mining Operations) M-3

Request to Remove Subsurface Withdrawal from Discharge [453
Structure (NPDES-Permitted Mining Operations) M-2

Request to Remove Treatment Basin/Pond or Other 454
Discharge Structure (NPDES-Permitted Mining Operations)
M-3

Required Information for Mixing Zone Modeling M=-1 455
SID Discharge Monitoring Report Form (Monthly) 457
SID Discharge Monitoring Report Form (Quarterly) 458
SRF Payment Request Form . 459
Drinking Water - Surface Source Susceptibility Analysis |46l
Worksheet M=-1

Toxicity Discharge Monitoring Report Form 464
Toxicity Test Report Summary 465
NPDES/SID/UIC Permit Transfer Agreement M-3 466
Drinking Water - Construction Permit Application M-2 488




Drinking Water - Modification Permit Application 489
Drinking Water - Renewal Permit Application M=-2 490

ﬁrinking Water - pPublic Water System Informaticn Updatel|491
~1

Notice cf Intent-NPDES General Permit Number ALGS8S0000 (498

M-6

Notice of Termination - NPDES General Permit Number 499
"TG890000 M-4

NFDES Noncoal/Nonmetallic Mining and Dry Processing 500
Less than Five Acres Stormwater Inspection Report and

“MP Certification M-3

wrlos Small Mining Nencempliance Notification Report 501
-4

Notice of Intent - NPDES General Permit Number 503

ALR0O40C00 (MS4 Phase I1) M-3

Water an~ Wastewater Operator Exam Application M-1 505

Eater anc Wastewater Operator Experience Verification |506
-1

Water and Wastewater Reciprocal Application M-1 507

Water and Wastewater Cperator for Multiple Systems M-1 508

TAm ] i Watar Ciirmm]l amant ol TrmfFmrarmatime- MWM_" E1h

LoD Lasly Llowlldiyse MULLLLOL LY KEROLL FOrm 214

EDMR Monthly Discharge Monitoring Report Form 515

Sfurrnloamantal Petroleum Application Informaticn 516
ean Vessel Act Grant Application 517

cvdeany tnfrastructure Grant Application 18

General Phase II MS4 Stcrmwater Permit Renewal Notice 10«0

~%f Intent M-1

notice of Intent-NPDES General Permit Number ALG64000C [522

M-6

Hydregeology Unit Evaluation Report Form 531

"acrvmentation of Disability Related Needs 533

Lrinking Water - Gilardia and Virus Profile Spreadsheet [§35

-1

Drinking Water - WTP Quarterly Report for the Oy

Disinfectants and Disinfection Byproducts Rule M-2

NPDES Individual Permit Application (Coalbed Methane 549

Operations) M-4

Notice of Intent-UIC General Permit Number ALIGC10000 (552

Notice of Intent-UIC General Perwut Number ALIG020000 553

Notice of Termination - NPDES General Permits 554

(Industrial Activities)

No Exposure Certification for Exclusion from NPDES 555

Stermwater Permitting for Industrial Activities M-1
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335-1-6-.07 Payment Of Fees.

(1) Payment of permit application/registration fees required
under subparagraphs (1) {a) and (1) (b) or paragraph (2} of Rule
335-1-6-.04 shall be included with the permit application/
registration. No permit application shall be processed without
payment of such fees.

(2) Any fee required under subparagraph (1) (¢) of Rule 335-1-6-.
04 shall be billed to the applicant. Payment of such fee shall
be made within thirty days of the invoice date. No final
decision regarding the permit application shall be made until
after payment of such fee. Failure to make payment as provided
herein shall constitute cause for non-processing/denial of the
permit application.

(3) Payment of fees required under Rule 1-6-.05 shall be made
within thirty days of the date of the invoice which the
Department shall send to the person making the application or
request or requiring the certificate.

(4) Payment of fees required under Rule 335-1-6-.06 shall be
included with the application for such license, variance or
certification. No application shall be processed without payment
of such fees.

{5) All fees paid pursuant to the requirements of this Chapter
shall be non-refundable. ‘

(6) All fees and remittances shall be made payable to the
Alabama Department of Environmental Management,

SCHEDULE A

AIR QUALITY PERMITS



Type of Activity

Permit Preparation (Per Permit)

State Regulations Only (Per Permit)
Public Comment Period (Per Application)
NSPS Review (Per Permit/Per NSPS)
NESHAPS Review (Per Permit/Per NESHAP)

MACT/112 (g) Determination (Per Pollutant/Per
Determination)

PSD Review (Per Application)

BACT Determination (Per Pollutant)

Non-Attainment Review Submittal Fee (Per
Application)

LAFR Determination (Per Permit per
Pollutant/Per Determination}

Plantwide Applicablity Limits (PAL) Review
(Per Pollutant)

Non-Criteria Air Pollutant Review (Per
Pollutant)

Modeling Review
Modeling Protocaol Review
Modeling Review

Class 1 Modeling Review

Fee

51,465
$575
$740

$2,795

$2,795

5940

52,410

$940

52,410

$940

$11,830

$1,895

$2,575
519,060

$2,575



Emission Inventory Preparation

Meteorological Data

Adequacy Determination of Preconstruction
Monitoring Network/Data

Soil Remediation Plan Review

Certification and Recertification of
Asbestos Removal Contractors

Name Change

$1,460

+ $150/
point/pollutant

51,085

57,435

$650

$740

$800 + $150 per
permit



FEE SCHEDULE B
COASTAL USE PERMITS STATEWIDE WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION AND
REVIEHWS

Type of Activity

Commercial and/or Residential Development

a) Commercial and Residential Development greater than 5
acres and less than 25 acres in size.

b) Commercial and Residential Development 25 acres or
greater and less than 100 acres in size.

c) Commercial and Residential Development 100 acres or
greater in size.

Groundwater extraction from a well having capacity of 50 gpm
or more (335-8-2-.09).

Construction on Beaches and Dunes {(335-§-2-.08)

a) 1 single family dwelling or 1 duplex.
b) 2 single family dwellings or 2 duplexes.
c) Commercial {(non-residential} structure, multi-unit

residential structure having more than 2 units, or any
other combination of living units not covered under a) or
b} above.

d} Hardened erosion control structure, including
retaining walls, seawalls, bulkheads and similar
structure, or the placement of rip-rap.

Beach Nourishment Projects on Gulf Beaches

a) Gulf Beach Nourishment Project filling less than 1,000
square feet of State waterbottoms.

b} Gulf Beach Nourishment Project filling 1,000 square
feet to 100,000 sguare feet of State waterbottoms.

PROJECT

Fee

$9,025

$19,070
$25,920

$3,995

$1, 330
$1,750

$17,765

$2,035

$1,895

$3, 785



FEE SCHEDULE B

COASTAL USE PERMITS STATEWIDE WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION AND PROJECT

REVIEWS

Typa of Activity

c) Gulf Beach Nourishment Project f£illing greater than
100,000 square feet of State waterbottoms.

Projects Impacting Wetlands

a) Project involving the dredging or filling of less than
1,000 square feet of wetlands.

b) Project involving the dredging or filling of 1,000
square feet or more of wetlands.

c) Pile Supported residential, multifamily or commercial
structure (does not include piers, walkways, gazebos).

Projects Impacting Water Bottoms

a) Project invelving the filling of less than 1,000
square feet of water bottom.

Feea

56,985

$2,125

54,235

$3,940

52,125



FEE SCHEDULE B

COASTAL USE PERMITS STATEWIDE WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION AND PROJECT

REVIEWS

Type of Activity

b) Project involving the filling of 1,000 square feet or
more of water bottom.

c) Project invelving the dredging of less than 10,000
cubic yards of material from the water bottom.

d) Project involving the dredging of 10,000 cubic yards
to 100,000 cubic yards of material from the water bottom.

e) Project involving the dredging of greater than 100,000
cubic yards of material from the water bottom.

£} Project which involves the construction of coastal
or inland marinas, canals, or creek relocation or
modification.

g) Raised creek crossing.

Shoreline Stabilization of Non Gulf-Fronting Properties

a) Shoreline stabilization project involving less than
200 feet of shoreline stabilization, inc¢luding bulkhead
construction or placement of rip-rap.

b} Shoreline stabilization project involving greater than
200 feet of shoreline stabilization including bulkhead
construction or placement of rip-rap.

’

Groin, jetty, and/or other sediment catching shoreline
structure,

Construction of pile supported pier, dock, boardwalk, or
other similar structure.

Siting, construction and operation of energy facility.

Mitigation bank project.

State agency permits subject to review, not otherwise
specified in Schedule B.

Fee

$4,235

$2,125

54,235

$7,855

$4,235

$800

. $800

$1,330

$1,680

$800

$24,480

$8,730

51,680



COASTAL USE PERMITS STATEWIDE WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION AND

Federal license or permits not otherwise specified in

Schedule B.

FEE SCHEDULE B

REVIEWS

Type of Activity

Project requiring certification for a Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission permit or authorization.

All other projects and/or consistency reviews not otherwise
specified in Schedule B which are subject to ADEM’s Divisicn

8 regulations.

Certification transfer or to change the name of the

applicant only.

Modifications, and/or time extension, not requiring public

notice.

Modifications and/or time extension,

requiring public notice

shall be one-half the fee listed in schedule B but in no

case less than $800.

Additive fee for variance request.

TIYPE OF ACTIVITY

Permit Type (6)

Transport-Hazardous
Waste/Used Oil

Base Application
Transporter) (25)

(Non

FEE SCHEDULE C
HAZARDOUS WASTE PERMITS

NEW DESIGN/

INITIAL ADDITIONAIL,  MINOR
UNIT UNIT (2) MOD
{1) (3)
""" $1: 138
$2,105
$6,985

536,475 $27,520 352,320

MAJOR
MOD

(4)

52,105

$9,025

PROJECT

Fee

51,680

56,550

$800

$800

5800

or §800

$3,275

CLOSURE

$8,154



FEE SCHEDULE C
HAZARDOUS WASTE PERMITS

NEW DESIGN/
INITIAL ADDITIONAL MINOR MAJOR CLOSURE
TYPE OF ACTIVITY UNIT UNIT (2) MOD MOD PLAN
(1) (3) (4) (5)

Storage (Container/

Tank/Containment

Building)
Drip Pad $36,475 $27,520 §$2,320 $9,025 $8,154
Treatment {7) $46, 315 $34,820 $2,915 511,430 $9,760
Thermal Treatment (8) $111,550 $83,740 $7,205 $27,740 $9,760
Land Treatment 562,550 $47,035 $3,940 $15,515 $18,5%90
Waste Pile §52,795 $39,760 $3,275 $13,030 $19,590
Surface Impoundment $85,410 $64,225 $5,400 $21,185 $19,5%90
Landfill $475,000 $450,000 $6,860 $26,585 $19,590
Post-Closure (9) 582,135 $61,760 $5,110 520,395 @ ~---a-
SWMU Only (10) $16,31¢0 = -=---- $§1,025 $4,070  ==aw--
Miscellaneous Units $93,780 $§70,475 $5,8B20 $23,300 @ ------
Corrective Action 542,380 $31,825 $2,770 510,640 Varies

Management Unit (17) (18)
Non-Unit Specific = = =----=~- = ---cna $1,160 $5,400  mm-mae

Modifications {(11)
Modifications to = ----==  eeeeen oooo-. $14,550  e-----

Incorporate Final

Corrective Measures
ADDITIVE FEES (12) _ _ _ . _
Groundwater _ _ _ _ _

Contamination (13)
Plume Undefined 561,960 $46,460 ====-==  smmee-a cceaa.
Plume Defined $32,615 $24,410 ======  ssms==  c-ceaa
Trial Burn (14} $16,310  ----em mmememe- memees aemaas
RCRA Facility $16,310 = s-=mme memmee eemeen eeees

Assessment (RFA) (24)
RCRA Facility $24,470 $18,790 ====--  smeeee ee--aa

Investigation (RFI)
Certification (15)



FEE SCHEDULE C
HAZARDOUS WASTE PERMITS

NEW DESIGN/
INITIAL ADDITIONAL MINOR MAJOR CLOSURE
TYPE OF ACTIVITY UNIT UNIT (2) MOD MOD PLAN
(1) (3) (4) (5)
Corrective Action $42,390 $31,825 $2,780 $10,640 @ ------
Program (CAP} or
Corrective Measures
Implementation (CMI)
Plan Certification
(16)
Temporary Unit $35,890 $26,946 $2,330 $8,950 $8,155
Off-Site Waste Analysis $8,155 = meeae-- $810 $2,125  meee--
Certification (19}
Indirect Risk $163,105 = smmesmes mmmemee emmeee meeoos
Assessment (20)
Landfill 5-Year Review $450,000 $450,000 --——==  —m—m——— e
Certification (25)
Confirmatory Sampling $20, 395 $15,305 ------  sesee- emeea-
(CS) Work Plan
Certification (21)
Interim Measures (IM) $20,395 $15,305 ==ve-- ----mm om--e-
Work Plan
Certification (22)
Corrective Measures $24,755 $18,935 ------ m—---- em—-

Study (CMS)
Certification (23)

FEE SCHEDULE C (Continued)

EXPLANATORY NOTES

(1) Fee applies to initial unit (design) of a given type at a facility.

(2) Fee applies to additional designs and/or units of the same type unit
or process at a given facility.

{3) Refer to rule 335-14-8-.04(3) for classification of minor mods. Each
separate mod request requires a separate fee payment. Multiple
changes to a permit consolidated in one mod request will be charged
a single fee for each applicable unit. {e.g., A facility permitted



for container storage and a landfill who requests modifications to
both units will be charged the appropriate fee for each unit.)

(4} Refer to rule 335-14-8-.04(2) for classification of major mods. Each
separate mod request requires a separate fee payment. Multiple
changes to a permit consolidated in one mod request will be charged
a single fee for each applicable unit. (e.g., A facility permitted
for container storage and a landfill who requests modifications to
both units will be charged the appropriate fee for each unit.)

(5) If clean closure is not attained and a post-closure permit is
required, then the cost is credited to the post-closure permit fee.
Closure plan fees shall be charged per unit to be closed,

(6) Fees for miscellaneous units {rule 335-14-5-,24) and for other units
not specifically listed shall be assessed based on the fees
established for the permit type most closely analogous to the
activity in question. For example, an open burning/open detonation
unit would be assessed fees for thermal treatment; a stabilization
unit would be assessed fees for treatment; etc.

{7) Fee applies to all treatment units except land treatment units and
thermal treatment units.

(8) Fee applies to incinerators, boilers, industrial furnaces, and other
thermal treatment units.

(9) Fee applies to each hazardous waste management unit which is subject
to post-closure permitting requirements. Multiple units which are
cleosed under a single (common) cap will be charged the fee for a
single post-closure unit. Fee also applies to certification of
post-closure plans required by order.

{10} Fee applies to permits which include solid waste management unit
(SWMU) requirements {pursuant to ADEM Admin. Code rs. 335-14-5-.
06(12), 335-14-5-.19, 335-14-8-.02(5) (d), but do not include
regulated hazardous waste management unit requirements. This fee
applies to facilities which have completed all closure and
post-closure requirements for regulated hazardous waste management
units, but do not complete all SWMU requirements. Fee applies to
modifications which are not unit specific (i.e., mods not affecting
the unit type, design, or configuration). Examples: contingency
plan changes, transfer of ownership, personnel training plan
changes, changes to groundwater moniteoring system, etc.

(I'ly Additive fees are levied in addition to base application fees as
applicable. Total fees due are sum of base application fees and
additive fees applicabkle to a given facility/application.



(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

Initial fee applies to the first contaminant plume at a facility.
The additional unit fee will be charged for each additional,
separate plume at the same facility.

Fee applies to each trial burn performed.

Initial fee applies to the first investigation at a facility imposed
by the Department under ADEM Admin. Code r. 335-14-5-.,06(12). The
fee is applicable at the time the investigation is imposed. The
additional unit fee will be charged for each additional, separate
investigation at the same facility (e.g. an investigation of a newly
discovered area of contamination). This fee is also applicable to
any investigation required by statute or order that is designed to
assess the extent of contamination at a facility or a single unit
within a faceility.

Fee applies to each separate corrective action program proposal or
corrective measures implementation plan submitted. CAPs which
integrate multiple technologies ({e.g., pump and treat, biological,
chemical, physical, etc.} intc a single system shall be charged a
single fee for the system. Facilities which have multiple separate
programs (e.g., two separate groundwater contamination plumes, one
remediated using pump and treat and the other using vapor
extraction) shall be charged a separate fee for each separate
system. This fee is also applicable to passive corrective measures
(e.g. land-use restrictions, monitored natural attenuation).

Fee applies to each separate corrective action management unit
(CAMU) designated/approved at a facility. This fee is in addition
to any other fees applicablé to any hazardous waste management units
included within a CAMU.

Fee determined based on type of units (Storage - $4,855; Treatment
[except Land Treatment] - $§5,820; Disposal/Land Treatment -
511,650} .

Fee applies to facilities which receive hazardous waste from
off-site sources (e.g., commercial facilities).

Fee applies to thermal treatment units required to conduct indirect
risk assessments.

Initial fee applies to the first CS work plan at a facility. The
additional unit fee will be charged for each additional, separate CS
workplan at the same facility.

Initial fee applies to the first IM work plan at a facility. The
additional unit fee will be charged for each additional, separate IM
workplan at the same facility.



(22)

(23)

(24)

Initial fee applies to the first CMS work plan at a facility.

The

additional unit fee will be charged for each additional, separate
CMS workplan at the same facility.

Fee is charged per each RFA Report prepared for a given facility.

Landfill 5-Year Review Certification fee applies to operating
hazardous waste land disposal facilities subject to 335-14-5-,05.

Type of Activity

Major Industrial
Discharger

Miner Industrial
Discharger

Major Municipal &
Private

Mincr Municipal &
Private & Water
Treatment

Municipal Stormwater

{(MS=-4)

Mineral/Resource
Extraction Mining,

Storage Transloading,

Dry Processing

FEE SCHEDULE. D
WATER PERMITS

Initial Registration/

Issuance Reissuance
or Modification
(effluent limit

change) (injection
zoneé change or

compatibility study)

$17,990

$5,615

$7,060

$4,290

$7,060

$5,820

$6,860

Modification
{no effluent limit
change) (no
injection zone
change or no
compatibility study)

$3,940

£3,120

$3,140

$2,250

$3,275

$3,400

$3,940



Type of Activity

Wet Preparaticn,
Processing,
Beneficiation

Coalbed Methane
General Permit

Minor NPDES
Modifications

ADDITIVE FEES

Modeling with Data
Collection (10
Stations)

» Modeling with Data

Collection (5 Stations)

Modeling - desktop

Review of Model

Performed by Others

Seasonal Limits

Biomonitoring &
Toxicity Limits

316b Phase I, Phase IT,

and

FEE SCHEDULE D
WATER PERMITS

Initial Registration/

Issuance Reissuance
or Modification
(effluent limit

change) (injection
zone change or

compatibility study)

56,860

$1,385

$60,390

549,315

$4,855

$2,705

$4,855/
additional season

$1,015

$5,065

Modification
(no effluent limit
change} (no
injection zone
change or no
compatibility study)

$3,940
$800

$800

$60,390

549,315

34,855

52,705

54,855/
additional season

$1,015



Type of Activity

Phase III Facilities
[Permit Issuance/
Re-issuance
Modification]

Review ¢f Site Specific
Impingement and
Entrainment Studies
and/or Comprehensive
Demonstraticon Studies

SID

Indirect Discharge
{3ID)

Indirect Discharge with
EPA Established
Categorical Effluent
Guidelines

uIcC

Class III Well
Class V Well
General Permit

WATER SUPPLY

Surface Water Treatment
Plant/System

Distribution System

FEE SCHEDULE D
WATER PERMITS

Initial Registration/
Issuance Reissuance
or Modification
(effluent limit
change) ({(injection
zone change or
compatibility study)

$40,52

$3,850

54,375

$33,€50
$4,290
51,385

$4,595

$2,985

$3,715

Modification
(no effluent limit
change) {no
injection zone
change or no
compati™‘1lity study)

$2,125

$2,520

52,250
$2,250
$800

52,250

51960

51960



FEE SCHEDULE D
WATER PERMITS

Initial Registration/
Issuance Reissuance

or Modification Modificaticn
(effluent limit (no effluent limit
change) {injection change) (no
Type of Activity zone change or injection zone
compatibility study) change or no

compatibility study)

Groundwater Supply
(Well/System)

----- $800
Name Change/Permit
Minor Mod
$7,435 $5,820
AFQ/CAFO Indiwidual
Permit
AFQ/CAFO Registration:
3450 5150
AFC
CAFC:
5725 5450
1-899 Animal Units s1,399 S815
1,000-1,499 Animal 52,060 $1,175
nits $2,725 $1,550

1,500-1,999 Animal
Units

2,000 or more
Animal Units

Due upon submittal oF CDS

FEE SCHEDULE E



SOLID WASTE PERMITS/REGISTRATION

Type of Activity Initial Modification Reissuance
Issuance
Medical Waste Transfer 52,035 §725 $1,330
Facility
New Technology Review $10,205 = eemeae emmeao
Commercial Treatment Facility 516,460 $7,280 59,180
Commercial Transportation of 53,490 51,460 $2,035
Medical Waste
Storage of Untreated Medical 52,630 5665 51, 960
Waste
Municipal Solid Waste $83,880  ------ $37,270
Landfill/CCR Unit
Minor Mod. (1)* = eaea-- $3,275 @ ------
Major Mod. (2)* = aecaaa- 532,615 ------
Construction/Demolition Waste 57,145 = ------ §5,400
Landfill
Minor Mod. (l}*  ace-aa $1,460 = ---=---
Major Med. (2)* —----- $2,915 ------
Industrial Waste Landfill 512,670 = ee---- 58,150
Minor Med. (1)*  meeaaa $1,460 ====a--
Major Med. (2)*
------ 54,375 ——————
Compost Facility 54,860 _ $3,670
Minor Mod. _ $1,225 _
Major Mod - $1, 945 -
Additive Fees _ _ _
Geological Review $4,865 $3,275 $3275



Solid Waste Disposal
Notification

Variance Request

Beneficial Use Facility
Registration

Beneficial Use Generator
Beneficial Use Distributor

Beneficial Use FPR Treatment
Facility

*1. These are modifications
335-13-5-.06(2).

*2. These are modifications
335-13-5-.06(1).

as

as

5215

51,460

$1,680
$3,360

$5,050

included in

included in

FEE SCHEDULE F

[RESERVED]

(Repealed 10/6/17)

5215

51,460

5550

ADEM Admin.

ADEM Admin.

$215

51,460

51,680
$3,360

$5,050

Code rule

Code rule



FEE SCHEDULE G
VARIANCES, CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSES

Initial
Type of Activi — i
YP ctivity Issuance Reissuance
Well Driller's License 5200 $200
Wa*~< and Wastewater Operator
Certification
Examination Fee $32% eeeaaa
Water and Wastewater Operator
Certification Issuance Fee S
Water and Wastewater Operator
Certification Renewal via Internet = ~~°°°- 270
Water and Wastewater Operator
Certification Renewal via Mail = ~°°7°- 295
Water and Wastewater Operator
Certification Renewal Late Fee "7 °°°-" 521
Water and Wastewater Operator Reciprocal
Certification s180 eee---
Microbiclogical lab certification 5360 5360

Chemical laboratory certification




FEE SCHEDULE G

VARIANCES, CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSES

Type of Activity

Metals
Pesticides
Herbicides

Volatile Crganic Chemicals

Synthetic Organic Chemicals

Disinfection Byproducts

Inorganics

Radiologicals
Asbestos
Dioxin

Maximum annual chemical lab
certification fee

Coastal Variance See Schedule B

Initial

Issuance

$360
$360
$360
$360

$540

5540

$360
$360
$360

$360

$1,460

Reissuance






FEE SCHEDULE G
VARIANCES, CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSES

ttial

T ivi ——
Type of Activity {ssuance
Dioxin 5360

Maximum annual chemical lab 51,460

certification fee

Coastal Variance See Schedule B

Reissuance

See ADEM Admin. Cede r. 335-10-1-.11(3)

FEE SCHEDULE G
VARIANCES, CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSES

Hazardous Waste Initial Modification

Issuance
Dispcsal Certification of
Waste at a Commercial 5360 5360
Hazardous Waste Landfill

Variance from Classification
as a Solid Waste Pursuant to

i 516,310 ------
ADEM Admin. Ccde r. 335-14-1-.
03 (L0}
Delisting Certification
Pursuant to ADEM Admin. Ccde 516,310  ce-en-

r. 335-14-1-.03(2)
Variance from a Hazardous
Waste Treatment Standard $4,375  emeeo-
Pursuant tc ADEM Admin. Code !
r, 335-14-9-.04 (%)

Notification of Regulated 5180
Waste Activity

Variance to be classified as a
boiler pursuar to ADEM Admin,
Code r. 335-14-1-.03(12)

Variance to extend the
effective date of a LDR on a 54,375 e----o-
case-by-case basis

54,375 e-a---

Re ~suance

5360

516,310

54,375

5180

54,375

54,375



FEE SCHEDULE G
VARIANCES, CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSES

Hazardous Waste Initial u~4ification Reissuance
Issuance
Variance to allow land
disposal of a prchibited waste $4,375 ------ §4,375
Hazardous Waste Generator
Closure Certification 54,375 mee--- $4,375
£ ivit itial i .
Type of Activity Initia Reissuance Reissuance After
Issuance . :
Expiration
Sclid Waste Landfill
Cperator Certification
Landfill Cperator
L mmmmaa e m e e -
Certification Issuance $125
Fee
Landfill Operator
Certification Renewal Fee = ~777°7° 58 ------

Landfill Operator
Certification Late ~ ~°°°°"° "o oeme- £310
Renewal Fee

Landfill Cperator
Recipreocal Certification $180 e-e--- e
Fee

FEE SCnmOULE H

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AND VOLUNTARY CLEANUP PROGRAM

Non-Responsible Applicant



TYPE OF ACTT™VITY
(1

Application

With Variance
(2)

Assessment Review

Assessment Report

(2)

Cleanup Review

Cleanup Report

Letter of Concurrence

Unconditional
Conditional

Property Eligibility
(3)

Determination

REVIEW

$5,0690

$16,855

$6,740

$4,260

$12,470

$7,720

$1,680

$4,210

Responsible

FEE

$670

“TNOR MAJOR
M "1riCATION  MODIFICATION

$250
$500

NA
NA

$1,680
$2,570

531,680
82,570

NA
NA

NA
NA
NA NA

Applicant



Application (!’ $5,060  $250  $500

With Variance $16, 855 NA NA

Assessment Review(z) $24,470 82,770 $9,840

Assessment Report $10,520

Cleanup Review
$43,065 $2,770 89,840

Cleanup Report

$17,635
Letter of Concurrence
Unconditicnal $1,680 NA NA
Conditional $4,210 NA NA
Property Eligibility Determination(z) 3670 NA NA

Additive Fees(4)

Public Notice(s) =800
Groundwater Monitoring(s) 1,000
Risk Management RM-1 $1,70C
Risk Management RM-2 54,350

$1,500

Operation and Maintenance Pla

(1) Submittal of the appropriate application fee is reguired
pricr to the review of any plans, reports, and, or
certifications.



(2) An Assessment and/or Cleanup Review fee 1s assessed when
review cf a plan and report is required as determined by the
Department.

(3) Property eligibility determinations are valid for a period
of one year from date of issuance.

{4} Additive fees are levied on the assessment or cleanup fees
as applicable. Total fees due are a sum of assessment and/or
cleanup fees and additive fees applicable tc a given applicant.

{(5) A Public Notice fee is assessed on any Plan or Report which
proposes final cleanup remedy recommendations, such as removal
of contaminants and/or an Environmental Covenant.

(6) These fees are assessed annually until required activities
are complete and/or terminated by the Department.

(7) Fee is added to a Cleanup Review and/or Report fee, when an
Operation and Maintenance (OAM) is reguired as a part of the
apprcved remedy. Mcdification of C&M activities would require a
modification of the Cleanup Report and submittal of required
fees.

FEE SCHEDULE I

SCRAP TIRE PROGRAM PERMITS/REGISTRATIONS



Type of Activity Initial ModificationReissuance
Issuance
Class One Processor Permit 53,040 $755 51,510
Class Two Processor Permit $2,525 $635 51,260
Class Three Processor Permit 52,525 $635 51,260
Scrap Tire Transporter Permit $1,015 $260 $510
Limited-use Transporter Permit 5260 | @ eme——- 5260
(see Notel)
Registration as an Exempt 51,015 5260 $510
Processor
Registration for Engineered Use $1,015 | @ m==mm—— | meeee
of Tire Materials
Notel: A limited-use transporter permit is available to property

owners remediating a scrap tire pile on their own property, and shall
be issued for a limited amount of time and under conditions as
prescribed by ADEM.

See ADEM Admin. Code r. 335-4-3-.03(b) for definitions of processors

Fee Schedule J

Environmental Covenants Fees



Type of Activity Initial Issuance Modification

Processing and Review Fee
Institutional Controls 54,285 51,070
Engineering Controls $6,425 $1,610

Registry Recording Fee

For Class 1 controls* 513,705 $635
For Class 2 controls* $9,420 $635
For €lass 3 controls* $5,245 $635

* - For classification of institutional and engineering controls, see
ADEM Admin. Code Rule. 335-5-1-.03(1i).

Registry Recording Fee also includes costs of performing 4inspections
for a 30-year period.

For sites wutilizing both institutional <controls and engineering
controls, the processing and review fees shall be the greater of the
applicable fees,

For sites with more than one classification of institutional or
engineering contreol, the registry recording fee shall be the greater
of the applicable fees.

For a property or site containing multiple individually deeded parcels
covered by one or more similar covenants, the owner or operator may
pay all applicable fees listed in Fee Schedule J or the owner or
operator or other responsible party may include a provision in an
order or agreement executed between the owner or operator or other
responsible perscn and the Department to pay fees as provided in
335-5=1-.06(6).

Author: Marilyn Elliott, Russell A. Kelly, Brian C. Espy
Statutory Autheority: Code of Ala. 1975, §22-22A-5.

History: Efféctive February 13, 1985. Amended: Filed December
12, 1996; effective January 16, 1997. Amended: Filed February
24, 1999; effective March 31, 1999. BAmended: Filed December 5,
2001; effective January 9, 2002. Amended (Schedule H only):
Filed April 11, 2002; effective May 16, 2002. Amended (Schedules
B, C, D, E, & F only): Filed August 29, 2002; effective October
3, 2002. Amended (Added Schedule I only): Filed June 30, 2004;
effective August 4, 2004. Amended (Schedules A-H only): Filed




December 6, Z005; effective January 10, 2006. Amended
(Schedules D & G only): Filed June 6, 2006; effective July 11,
2006. Amended (Schedules A-I only): Filed October 10, 2006;
effective November 14, 2006. Amended (Schedules A thru I only):
Filed December 18, 2007; effective January 22, 2008. Amended
(Schedule G only): Filed December 15, 2009; effective January
13, 2010. Amended (Text and Schedules A thru J): Filed Qctober
25, 2011; effective November 29, 2011. Amended (Schedules A
thru J only): Filed June 25, 2013; effective July 30, 2013.
Amended (Schedules A thru J only): Filed December 21, 2016,
effective January 25, 2017. Amended (Schedule E only): Filed
April 24, 2018, effective June 8§, 2018. Amended (Schedule E
only): Filed June 25, 2019; effective August %, 2019. Amended
(Schedules E, H, and J only): Published February 28, 2020;
effective April 13, 2020. Amended (Schedules C and J only):
Published December 31, 2020; effective February 14, 2021,
Amended (Schedule H only): Published April 29, 2022; effective
June 13, 2022. Amended (Fee Schedule E only): Puhlished
Na~rambaw» 20N 27N . .—\F-v’:r\r~+—-iv7e February 13' 202



335-1-7-.03 Exemp! * >ns.

(1) Stationary sources which are not major sources as defined in
335-1-7-.02 are exempt from annual fee payments.

Stationary sources within the boundaries of Jefferson County
ana the City of Huntsville shall be exempt from the payment of
fees if each said source pays an equivalent amount to either the
Jefferson County Department of Health or the City of Huntsville
Department of Natural Rescurces and Environmental.

adthor: Richard E. Grusnic
Statutory Autheority: Code __ .___.
22-22A-6, and 22-22n-8.

Historv: Fffoertiwve Nate-: Necemhear 10, 10647 Amanded :

m e ey ew—— t22A-4, 22-22A7-5,







YLraLtuLYly RAULULVLLLY . LUUT UL Adld. L0, FPRLLTLLAT ], é.L_i.LA_5;

22-22a-6, and 22-22a-8.

History: Effective Date: December 19, 1991. Amended: Filed
November 23, 1993; effective December 28, 19673 Amandad- Filed
NDecembher 12. 1996: effective January 16, 199




335-1-7-.05 - ment -~ Fees.

SoJdTLlT /T ..ud shidll De dildde O O pDelole wCLroper 21 0L eacll year

(2) Failure to submit payment as required in this Chapter shall
be cause for revocatiocon of ailr permit(s).

{3) Tailure to make payment of fees within 30 days of the date
the fees are due as provided in 335-1-7-.05(1} shall be cause
for the Department to assess a late fee of 3% (of the original
fee) per month or fracticn thereof.

(4} All fees paid pursuant to the reguirements of this Chapter
shall be non-refundable.

(5) All fees and remittances shall be made payable tc the
Alabama Department cof Environmental Management.

(6) On or before June 30th of each year, the source shall submit
its estimate of emissions for the previous calendar year. The
Department shall advise the source that it agrees with the
actual emission estimate used to calculate the fees, disagrees
with the actual emission estimate used to assess the fees or
needs additioconal information. When the Department sends a
notification agreeing with actual emissjion estimates, it may not
reassess the fees for the year in guestion unless it determines
that the source intenticnally provided erroneous information.

{7} All fees generated by this program will be used to directly
and indirectly support the Air Program.

ndthor: Richard E. Grusnic

Statutory Authority: Code v rmia. 137/0, swc2-228-4, 22-22RA-5,
22-22A-6, and 22-22A-8.

History: Effective Date: December 19, 1991. Amanded- Filed
Necemher 72, 1886: effective January 16, 199
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Section IV ;

Have you previously filed a Title VI complaint with this agency? Yes No

Section'V:

Have you filed this complaini with any other Federal, State, or local agency, or with any Federal or Staté court?
[]Yes [1No

If yes, check all that apply:

[ ] Federal Agency:
[ ] Federal Court [ ] State Agency
[ 1 State Court [] Local Agency

Please pravide information about a contact person at the agency/court where the complaint was filed.

Name:

Title:

Agency:

Address:

Telephone:

Section VI:

Name of person, company or agency the complaint is against:

Contactperson:

Title:

Telephone number:

You may attach any written materials or other information that you think is relevant to your
complaint.

Signature and date required below:

Signature Date

Please submit this form to address below, or email this form to:

Attn: Nondiscrimination Coordinator

Alabama Department of Environmental Management
1400 Coliseum Blvd.

Montgomery, Alabama 36110
mge@adem.alabama.gov

The Department shall nof retaliale, intimidate, threaten, coerce, or discriminate against any individual
for the purpose of interfering with any right or privilege granted under 40 C.F.R. Parts 5 and 7, or
because an individual has filed a complaint or has testified, assisted, or participated in any way in an
investigation, or has opposed any practice made unlawful under 40 C.F.R. Parts 5 and 7.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT COMMISSION
RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management gave notice of a
public hearing on the proposed revisions to ADEM Admin. Code 335-15 of the Department’s Land
Division — The Brownfield Redevelopment and Voluntary Cleanup Program in accordance with
Ala. Code § 22-22A-8 (2006 Rplc. Vol.) and Ala. Code § 41-22-4 (2000 Rplc. Vol.); and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before a representative of the Alabama Department
of Environmental Management designated by the Environmental Management Commission for

the purpose of receiving data, views and arguments on the amendment of such proposed rules; and

WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Environmental Management has reviewed the oral
and written submissions introduced into the hearing record, and has prepared a concise statement
of the principal reasons for.and against the adoption of the proposed rules incorporating therein its
reasons for the adoption of certain revisions to the proposed rules in response to oral and written
submissions, such revisions, where appropriate, having been incorporated into the proposed rules

attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, the Environmental Management Commission has considered fully all oral and
written submissions respecting the proposed amendments and the Reconciliation Statement

prepared by the Alabama Department of Environmental Management.

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to Ala. Code. §§ 22-22A-5, 22-22A-6, 22-22A-8 (2006
Rple. Vol), and Ala. Code. § 41-22-5 (2000 Rple. Vol.), as duly appointed members of the
Environmental Management Commission, we do hereby adopt and promulgate these revisions to
division 335-15 [rules 335-15-1-.01/ Purpose {(Amend); 335-15-1-.02/ Definitions (Amend); 335-15-2-
.01/ Property Eligibility Criteria (Amend); 335-15-2-.02/ Applicant Participation Criteria (Amend); 335-
15-2-:03/ Variance Criteria (Amend); 335-15-4-.02/ Limitation of Liability Qualifications (Amend); 335-
15-4-,03/ Voluntary Property Assessment Plans (Amend); 335-15-4-.04/ Voluntary Cleanup Plans
(Amend); 335-15-4-.06/ Certification of Compliance-Letter of Concurrence (Amend); 335-15-8-.01/

Page 1 of 4



ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT COMMISSION
RESOLUTION

Purpose (New); 335-15-8-.02/ Applicability (New); 335-15-8-.03/ Criterida for Eligibility and
Reimbursement (New); 335-15-8-.04/ Use of Brownfield Remediation Reserve Funds (New); 335-15-8-
- .05/ Applications for Reimbursement (New); 335-15-8-.06/ Fund Reimbursement. Procedures (New) ] of
the Department’s Department’s Land Division — The Brownfield Redevelopment and Voluntary
Cleanup Program rules, administrative code attached hereto, to become effective forty-five days,
unless otherwise indicated, after filing with the Alabama Legislative Services Agency.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT COMMISSION
RESOLUTION

ADEM Admin. Code division 335-15 — The Brownfield Redevelopment and Voluntary Cleanup

Program

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have affixed our signatures below on this 9™ day of
February, 2024.

A’ 'Frank McFadden, Commissioner

DISAPPROVED:

Mary J. Merritt, Commissioner H. Lanier Brown, II, Commissioner
J. Patrick Tucker, Commissioner Kevin McKinstry, Commissioner
John (Jay) H. Masingill, 1[I, Commissioner Ruby L. Perry, Comussioner

A. Frank McFadden, Commissioner
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT COMMISSION

RESOLUTION
ABSTAINED:
Mary J. Merritt, Commissioner H. Lanier Brown, I, Commissioner
J. Patrick Tucker, Commissioner Kevin McKinstry, Commissioner
John (Jay) H. Masingill, III, Commissioner Ruby L. Perry, Commissioner

A. Frank McFadden, Commissioner

" This is to certify that this Resolution is a true and accurate ~
account of the actions taken by the Environmental

&gemelzz;?msm onthis 5th day of February 2024.

A. Frank'McFadden, ('fhalr
Environmental Management Commission
Certified this 9th day of February 2024
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ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT LAND DIVISION
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

CHAPTER 335-15-1
GENERAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

335-15-1-.01 Purpose
335-15-1-.02 Definitions
335-15-1-.01 Purpose.

These regulaticns are promulgated pursuant to the Alabama Land
Recycling and Redevelopment Act, Code of 1575,
$22-30E-4. The Brownfield Redevelopment aunu vuiuacary Cleanup

Program provides a mechanism for the implementation of a cleanup
nraaram that encanracdas amnlicants to vonliintarily ageeas

Lolledillilild il L . Lile pPLogldil Lo Usoslydliliell LU Cxpoual Le Lile VU.Luill.dry
cleanup process and has been designed for entry at any stage of

the cleanup process as long as all applicable criteria have been
achieved up to the point of entry.

..dthor: Fred A. Barnes; Keith N. West:; Lawrence A. Norris;
Stephen A. Cobbh: Sania B. Favors: Austin R. Pierce; Pamela L.
Monagha

Statuto; §§22-30E~-1,
22-30E-., cc —ow =.

History: New Rule: Filed April 11, 2002; effective May 16,
2002. BAmended: Filed October 21. 2004: effective November 25.

335-15-1-.02 Definitions.

‘ms

Dildl 1l lidave il fHlieallllliyo ylvell Mo luw.












“Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage or Disposal
racaiiey” means any property or facility which is intended
or used for the treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous
waste subject to the permit reguirements of
335-14-8.

MLUPESL LY, Ll ouldiih,y WwWalel LEgoLual LT o . llles>e CUILLOUL D ol uade
but are not limited to:

1. Engineering controls for remedial actions directed
toward containing or controliling the migration of
contaminants through the envircnment. These include, but
are not limited to, conveyance
systems, slurry walio, Liuce DYDLTILD, LapS, leachate
collection systems, pump and treat systems, and
groundwater recovery systems.

2. Institutional controls which are legal or contractual
restrictions on property use that remain effective after
remediation is completed and are used to meet
remediation levels. The term may include, but is not
limited to, deed notations, deed restrictions and/or,
water use restrictions, restrictive covenants,
conservation easements, and limited development rights.

3. Water use restrictions which can be placed on the use
of a particular water supply source “hat has been
identified as beling contaminated with hazardous
substances c¢r other contaminants in order to protect
human health and the environment.

“Major Modification” means any modification that is not
a winor modification,



"Minor Modification” means any administrative and/
wi yeuerdl information changes, correction of typogragphical
errcrs, changes in ownership and or operational control, and
changes 1in the frequency of, or procedures for, monitoring,
reporting or sampling by the applicant to provide for mere
frequent monitoring, reporting or sampling.

"Mitigation” means reducing to the extent possible
ur rteeeslying the adverse impact by repaliring,
rehabilitating, restoring, or limiting exposure to the
affected envirconment.

“Nencarcinogen” 1s a chemical classification for
vue purpeses of risk assessment as an agent for which there
is either inadequate toxicological data or which is not
likely to be a carcinogen kased on an EPA weight-of-evidence
classification system.

“Cperation and Maintenance” means any action{s)
Loyu.Ted to operate and/or maintain the processes in place
o minimize any potential exposures tTo environmental
CONCErns on a property.

“"Owner or Operator”

1. The definition includes the following:

Lalllluy.

(ii) Any person who owned, operated, or otherwise
controlled activities at a facilitv immediatelw

2. The definition does not include the fcllowing:



capacity and who did not actively particivate in the
management, disposal, or release of hazardous
wastes, hazardous constituents, or hazardous
substances from the facility.

{ii} A unit of a state or local government which
acquired ownership or contrel involuntarily through
bankruptcy, tax delinquency, abandonment, or other
circumstances in which the government involuntarily
acquire title by virtue of its function as
sovereign. This exclusion shall not apply to any
state or leccal government which has caused or
contributed to the release of hazardous wastes,
hazardous constituents, or hazardeous substances from
the facility.

“Parent” has the same meaning as in 17 CFR
cav.zen—2 (1 April 1996 Edition).

“Participant” means a person who has received
vonrttrmacrion of eligibility and has remitted payment of
application fee,

B = E TP IR

“Petroleum” means ocil or petrcleum of any kind and
s wuny :oIM, including, without limitation, crude ©il or any
fracticn thereof, petroleum, gascline, kerosene, fuel oil,
0il sludge, used o0il, substances or additives utilized in
the refining or bklending of crude petrcleum or petroleum
stock, natural gas, natural gas liquids, liquefied natural
gas, synthetic gas usable for fuel, and mixtures of natural
gas and synthetic gas.

“Peollutant” includes but is not limited to dredged
sputt, svlid waste, incineratcr residue, sewage, garbage,
sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biolocgical
materials, radiocactive materials, heat, wrecked or discarded
equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt and industrial,
municipal, and agricultural waste. [Note: Scme materials
that meet the definition of “pollutant” may not meet the
criteria to be considered a solid waste, whether hazardous
or nonhazardous.]












“Site” means any property or porticn therecf, as
ayreeu Ly and defined by the participant and the Department,
which contains or may contain contaminants belng addressed
under this program.

“Source” means the point ¢f origin of a suspected

LMl QiilLiiall Lo

“Subsidiary” has the same meaning as in the 17
wrr oequ.len—2 {1 April 1996 Editicon).

“Unrestricted residential use” means the
ucosunacawn 0f acceptable future use at a site for any and
all activities associated with residential use at which the
remediaticon levels, based on either kackground or standard
residential exposure factors, shall have been attained
throughout the site in all media.

“Used 0il” means any ©il that has been refined
Lilunn wiuue 011, or any synthetic oil, that has been used and
as a result of such use, 1s contaminated by physical or
chemical impurities.

“Opper-bound lifetime cancer risk level” means a
wunascovawwave estimate of the probability of one excess
cancer occurrence in a given number of exposed individtuals.

For example, a risk level of 1 x 10—6 equates to the
possibility of one additiconal cancer coccurrence beyond the
number of occurrences that would otherwise cccur in cne
millicn exposed individuals, beyond the number of
occurrences that would otherwise occur. Upper-bound lifetime
cancer risk level is based on an assumption of continuous,
lifetime exposure and 1s likely to overestimate true risk.

“Voluntary Cleanup Plan” means any plan approved
unuer 500-15-4-.,04 that describes in sufficient detail those
actions planned to satisfy the cleaznup reguirements for the
qualifying property.



“Voluntary Cleanup Report” means a final report of the
cicandp of the entire facility in accordance with the
specifications in the approved cleanup plan.

dppLuved Ly Lo uepal LIIEILL ulldel 203 12—4—, U3 dIlad aescripes
in sufficient detail those actions planned to perform a risk
assessment or identify applicable cleanup requirements for
the property.

"Voluntary Property Assessment Report” means a
tepure vr Lhe assessment and findings from a Voluntary
Property Assessment which may include a recommendation for
applying cleanup standards to the property.

“"Well” means any shaft or pit dug or bored into
tne earcn, generally of a cylindrical form, and often walled
with bricks or tubing to prevent the earth from caving in.

author: Fred A, Barnes; Keith N. West; Lawrence A. Norris;
Stephen A. Cobb; Sonja B. Favors; Crystal L. Collins; Lynn T.
Romar- M fawin Adams; Austin R. Pierce; Pamela L. Mcnaghar

SLacuLury nuLuu;;tYZ Code of 1975, §22-30E-3.
History: WNew Rule: April 11, -vve, ciiccuive May 16, 2002.
Amended: Filed October 21, 2004; effective November 25, 2004.
Amended: Published February 28, 2020; effective April 13, 2020.
Emanded: Puhliched Anril 29, 2022; effective June 13, 2022.




ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT LAND DIVISION
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

CHAPTER 335-15-2
PARTICIPATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

335-15-2-.01 Property Eligibility Criteria
335-15-2-.02 Application Participation Criteria
335-15-2-.03 Variances Criteria

335-15-2-.01 Property Eligibility Criteria.

(1) Eligibiliity. In order to be considered a qualifying property
for participation in the voluntary cleanup program established
pursuant to 335-15-2, a property shall, unless granted a
variance under 335-15-2-.03, meet the following criteria:

{a) It must not be listed on the federal National Priorities
List pursuant to the federal Comprehensive Environmental
Response. Compensation, and Liability Act, 42 U.S8.C.

t seq.

(b) It must nct be currently undergoing response activities
required by an order of the Department.

{c) It must not be currently undergoing response activities
required by an order of the United States Environmental
Protection Agency 1ssued pursuanrt to the provisions of the
federal Comprehensive Environmental Reennnes  Campensation,
and Liability Act, 42 U.S5.C. et seq.

(dl It must not be a hazardous waste treatment, storage, or
disvosal facilirv subject to the permitting regquirements of
335-14-8-.01 through 335-14-8-.08,

(2) Letter of Eligikcility.

(a) Prior to submission of an applicaticn, a “Letter of
Eligibility” for the property may be issued hv the
Cepartment upon request and accompanied the
appropriate fee. Such a request shall be waue 1n the form of
a letter certifying that all of the requirements of
335-15-2-.01(1) (a) through (d} have been met. The “Letter of



Eligibility” shall remain valid for a period of one year
from the date of issuance.

{b) It the prcperty does not meet all eligikility
regulrements cr will otherwise require a vartance for
entrance into the program, a letter stating the reason(s)

fcr denial will be sent to the person requesting the “Letter
of Eligibility”.

Authour: Fred A. Barnes: Keith N. West: Lawrence A. Norris;
Stephen A. Cobi

Statutory Auths 1875, 22=-30E-6.
History: New huie. riieu Aprii 1., cvuvue; effective May 1le,

2002. Amended: Filed Cctober 21, 2004; effective Nocvember 25,
2004

335-15-2-.02 Application Participation Criteria.

(1) To qualify for participation 1in the voluntary cleanup
prcgram as provided in 335-15-2, an applicant shall not, unless
granted a variance under 335-15-2-.03, be in substantive
violation of any order, judgment, statute, rule, or regulation
subject to the enfcrcement authority of the Department, or the
United States Environmental Protection Agency with respect to
the gqualifying property.

(2) To participate in the Voluntary Cleanup Program an applicant
shall:

(a) Submit tec the Department a complete application with
applicable registration fee as cited in
335-1-6-.07, ard

(b) Pay to the Department all costs incurred by the
Department’s oversiaht of the voluntary cleanup as specified

in 35-1-6-.07 Fee Schedule H.
Authour: Fred A. Rarnes: Keith N. West: Tawrence A, Norris;
Stephen A. Cobl
Statutory Auth« 975, 5522-30E-6,
22-30E-7.

History: New Rule: Filed April 11, 2002; effective May 16,

2002 . Amended: Filed Octoher 271, 2004; effective November 25,
2004



335-15-2-.03 !f*iances Critﬂvig.

(1) Property eligibility variance. The Department may, subject
to the feollowing criteria, grant a variance from the eligibility
requirements contained in 335-15-2-.01. A variance may be
granted if:

{a) The requirements of 335-15-2-.01 would render the
property ineligible for cleanup under 335-15-2;

{b} No cther qualified has applied to
participate in the volunicary c.oeanup program at the subject
property; and

{c) It is determined that:

1. Such property ineligibility would result in the
centinuaticn of a condition that or could pcse
a threat to human health and/or cire cuvi:icnment;

2. Compliance with a property eligibility requirement
will nct provide for a cost-effective response and the
proposed voluntary cleanup plan will achieve resulis
that are eguivalent to those reguired thrcugh the use of
a Department approved methcd or apoproach;

3. The Department would otherwise be required to perform
the necessary cleanup on an abandoned site using funds
from the Alabama Hazardous Suhstance Cleanup Fund, as
described in Code of 1975, 5$22-30A-3, and
the Department would we unawie (o reccver the cost of
the cleanup as provided in Chapter 30A; and

4. In the case of a farilirv suhiert fo the permitting,
closure, post-closure, ive action
reguirements <of Code o 1975, §§822-30-12
and 22-30-16, the cleauuy wiltt e conducted in a manner
censistent with the requirements of any applicable
regulations and permits issued thereunder. Farticipation
in the voluntarv cleanup proaram mav be used to expedite



(2) Applicant eligibility wvariance. The Department may, subject

to the following criteria, grant a variance from the eligibility
requirements contained in 335-15-2-.02. A variance may be
granted 1f:

(a)

The requirements of 335-15-2-.02 would render the

applicant ineligible for cleanup under 335-15-2,

{b)

has

APP.~Liwu Lv paloiudipacs 1l Lle vuaullitaly tlodlup pruyram at

the subject property, and,

(c)

1s determined that:

1. Such ineligibility would result in the continuation
of a condition that does or could pose a threat to human
health and/or the environment.

2. Compliance with an applicant eligibility reguirement
will not provide for a cost-effective response and the
proposed voluntary clearup plan will achieve results
equivalent to those required through the use of a
Department approved method or approach.

3. The Department would otherwise be reguired to perform
the necessary cleanup on an abandoned site using funds
from the Alabama Hazardous Substance Cleanup Fund, as
described in Code of 1975, §22-30A-3, and
the Department would .. ... -. recover the cocst of
the cleanup as provided in Chapter 3CA.

(3) Variance request. The request will include such information

as the applicant believes is relevant tc the issuance cf a
variance and at a minimum should indicate why the varlance may
be necessary. A request for a variance, whether for the
applicant ¢r the property, shall be included in the applicatiocn

package.

{4y Varianre renditicone and withadrawala The Noamartmoant mayv



(3) Exclusion. The Department shall not grant any variance from
the qualification criteria for the limitation of liability as
described in 335-15-4-.02(1).

PR VR V]

History: New Rule: Filed April 11, 2002; effective May 16,
2002. Amanded- Filed Ortoher 21, 2004; effective November 25,
2004.
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335-15-4-.01 Purpose.

Establishes criteria for the submission of voluntary property
assessment plans and other technical informaticn, liability
limitations, assessments, plans, cleanup requirements, and
certificaticn cof compliance.

author: Fred A. Barnes; Keith N. West; Lawrence A. Norris;
Stephen A. Cobbk; Sonja B. Favors; Austin R, Plerce; Pamela L.
Monaghan

Statutory Authority: Code of 1975, %22-30E-9.
History: ©New Rule: Filed Ap_.__ __, _.._, effective May lg,
2002. Amended: Filed October 21. 2004: effective Novemher 25.
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335-15-4-.02 Limitation Of Liability Qualifications.

{1) Limitaticn cf liability criteria. To cualify for a
limitat‘on of liahilitv as preovided in cde of

1975, & 2=30E-10 (b}, an dpplicaﬂu Dllall LlEv Ll

all the Luvi.uwinyg cooterial



(2} The applicant shall not be a responsible person, as
defined in 335-15-1-.02, at the qualifying property.

(b) Where the applicant is an irdividual, the individual
shall not:

1. Be a relative by blood within the third degree of
consanguinity or by marriage; or

2. Be an employee, shareholder, officer, or agent; or
otherwise be affiliated with a current owner of the
subject property or any responsible person on the
subject property.

(c} Where the applicant is a corporation or other legal
entity, the corporation must not:

1. Be a current or former subsidiary, division, parent
company, ©r partner of a current owner; or

2. Be the employer or former employer of the current
owner; or

3. Be any responsible perscn con the subject property.

{AY The Timitation of Tiakilitsr rnrauided by ode of
1975 £¢ '2=30E-1L sita.l be
wuniLiuyene upon the || ) _ - ,..4 faith implementation of

the voluntary properily assessment and/or voluntary cleanup
plan as approved by the Department. Such limitation of
liability shall not be applicable to any activities
conducted on the gualifying property before the Department’s
approval of the voluntary property assessment plan, cleanup
plan, cr concurrence with a certification of compliance,
whichever occurs first.

(2) Inability to meet limitation of liability criteria.
Applicants who de not meet the criteria in 335-15-4-.02(1),
shall gualify only for a limitation of liability upcon acceptance
by the Department of the certification cof compliance for cleanup
of the site.

(3) Revocaticon of limitation of liability. If the Department
determines the assessment or cleanup is not being implemented in
accordance with the approved plan, it will nectify the applicant
and give reasonable opportunity to correct the deficiency.
Failure to correct noted deficiencies shall result in the
revocation of the limitaticn of liability protecticn afforded by
the Alabama Land Recycling and Economic Redevelcpment Act.




(4) Fiduciary limitation of liability. A lender, including one
serving as a trustee, personal representative, or in any other
fiduciary capacity in connection with a loan, or a lender
holding evidence of ownership of a qualifying property primarily
to protect a security interest, or as a result of foreclosure or
a deed in lieu of foreclosure of a security interest. is
entirled tn the liability protection established in ode of
1975, §22-30FE-9 if the lender meets eaci. uL Lhe

rurtruwiny reguirements:

ta) The lender has not caused or contributed to a release of
a contaminant at the qualified property;

{(b) The lender seeks to sell, transfer, or otherwise divest
the qualifying property at the earliest time; and

(c) The lender has not divested the berrower of, or
ctherwise engaged in, decision-making contrcl of assessment
or cleanup activities at the qualifying property or
operaticns at the qualifying property or undertaken
management activities beycnd those required to protect its
financial interest while making a good faith effort to sell

the qualifying property;

{5) Extension of Limitation of Liabilitv. The limitatian of

liability provided by lode of 1975,
1 2-30E-10 shall exitenu to the nTrLo,; acosdNs, aAllu ucsiyi.eeS
e nerson to whom such Timitatrionn af 1iakility e Arantad-
FELDWIL Wil LUT yudlllylly pRLUMEL LY.

(6) Departmental Response to Release. Nothing in 335-15-4 shall
limit the authority of the Department to take action in response
to any release or threat of release of regulated substances.
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Author: Lawrence
Pamela T. Monaghaz

oracuroury RAutheority: Code of 1275, §
22-30E-8, 22-30E-9, 22-30-10.
History: New Rule: Filed April 11, 2002; effective May 18,
2002. MAmended: Filed October 21, 2004; effective November 25,
2004. Amended: Pnhlished April 29, 2022; effective June 13,
2022

335-15-4-.03 Voluntary Property ~ sessmen* ™"ans.
(1) Submission.

{a) After acceptance of the application by the Department as
required in 335-15-3-.03, the applicant shall submit for
approval, a complete and comprehensive Voluntary Property
Assessment Plan for the site,

(b} Tf a property assessment has already been performed, a
complete and representative Voluntary Property Assessment
Repcrt shall be submitted to the Department for review in
accordance with 335-15-4-.03(8) (b}.

(2) Content. A Voluntary Property Assessment Plan submitted by
an applicant shall describe in sufficient detail those acticns
prlanned to develop nformation necessary to perform a risk
assessment or idenciry applicable cleanup standards for the
qualifying property utilizing reguirements found in the Alabama
Risk-based Corrective Action Guidance (ARBCA)Manual or other
appropriate risk-based corrective action principles through the
appropriate implementation of applicable response actions r
land use contreols. The plan should describe the methods to be
used to determine the type(s) and the amount{s) of any
contamination including the delineation of all soil and

n
pdcAadye lleed UL pe Iesulillted Uless, auring tne assessment
phase, informaticn is discovered which is contrary to that
information in the application package. Information submitted in
the Voluntary Property Assessment [~ in shall be submitted in a
format consistent with the Alabama Environmental Investigation
and Remediation Guidance {(AEIRG).

{2y A Voluntarv Provertv Assessment Plan snbmitted hv a



shasl D& Ccontallled in a Wrltten report authored, signed and
sealed by a qualified professional geclogist or engineer
licensed in the State of Alabama.

T LA ENATT LA L e R e e k] R A il LA Lrcad Ll [=3 L SR SR R
report authored, signed and sealed by a qualified
professicnal geclogist or engineer licensed in the State of
Alabama.

(3) Approval. The Department shall approve a complete Voluntary
Property Assessment Plan within 60 days of submittal. The plan
shall be considered approved if the Department fails to act
within this timeframe.

(4} Implementation. Upon approval of the Volurntary Property
Assessment Plan, the Department shall specify a time within
which the applicant shall implement the approved Voluntary
Property Assessment Plan. The applicant shall implement the plan
in accordance with the specified schedule.

(5) Loss of Limitation of Liability. If the Department
determines activities at the property are not being implemented
in accordance with the approved Voluntary Property Assessment
Plan, it will netify the applicant and give easonable
cpportunity to remedy the deficiencies. Faiiure to correct
deficiencies will result in the loss of liability protections

provided by ‘ode of 1975, §22-30E-10. The
applicant wiii we Proviacu w.wu waeacten notification specifying
the basis for making determination,

(6} Modification. If the applicant determines that any element
of an approved Voluntary Property Assessment Plan must be
medified in order to develcop the information necessary to
perform a risk assessment cr identify applicable cleanup
requirements for the gualifying property, the applicant shall
modify the approved plan and submit the proposed modification
for approval.




(7) Termination. If the applicant determines that any element of
an approved Voluntary Property Assessment Plan must be modified
in order to terminate activities at the property, the applicant
shall nectify the Department and obtain approval of the proposed
modification. Approval may be withheld only if the requested
modification to terminate assessment activities would increase
the risk to human health and the environment posed by the
conditions at the property within a specified time.

{8) Voluntary Property Assessment Report.

(a) An applicart shall, upon completion of those activities
specified in the Vcluntary Property Assessment Plan, submit
Lo the Department a report of the assessment and findings
from the assessment, which may include a reccmmendation for
applying cleanup requirements to the property.

(b) I{ an assessment has been conducted prior to submissicn
of an application, all pertinent information from that
assessment shall be incorporated in the Voluntary Property
Assessment Report.

(c) When a Voluntary Property Assessment Report proposes an
Environmental Covenant as the appropriate remedy for the
site, the Department will provide for public comment in
accordance with 335-15-6-.02(1). The Voluntary Property
Assessment Report and the draft Environmental Covenant shall
be included in the Public Nctice.

nduthor: Lawrence A. Norris; Stephen A. Cobb; James L. Bryvant;
Vernon H. Crockett; Sorja B. Favors; Lynn T. Rover: M. Gavin
Adams; Austin R. Pilerce; Pamela L. Monaaha:

Statutory Authority: Code of Seey vee wus .
History: New Rule: Filed Ap._. .., _..., effective May 16,
2002. BAmended: Filed Cctober 21, 2004; effective November 253,
2004. BAmended: Filed August 15, 2006; effective September 19,
2006. Amended: Published February 28, 2020; effective April
13, 2020. Bmeanded- Puhlished Anvil 29, 2022; effective June
13, 2022.

335-15-4-.04 Voluntary Cleanuy Plans.

{1) Submisslon. An acceptable Voluntary Cleanup Plan shall
describe in sufficient detail those actions necessary to return
the property to residential guality use, or at a minimum include



restrictions such as Zand use controls, if appropriate
satisfy the cleanup requirements for the qualifying propercy.

(2) Content. The plan must identify those steps necessary to
perform approved cleanup for the site. At a minimum, the cleanup
plan must include:

{a) A description of the remediation at each area of known
contamination;

{b) A description of the conduct of the cleanup at the
facility;

1. A detailed description of the methods to be used
during cleanup, including but nct limited to, removing,
transporting, treating, storing, or disposing of all
remediation waste, identification of the type(s) of off-
site solid and/or hazardous waste management unit{s) to
be used, if applicable.

2. & detailed description ¢f the steps needed to remove
or decontaminate all hazardous residues and contaminated
contalinment system components, equipment, structures,
and solils during cleanup including, but not limited to:

{i) Procedures for cleaning egquipment and removal of
contaminated soils;

{ii} Methods for sampling and testing surrounding
soils,

{iii) Criteria for determining the extent of
remediation necessary to satisfy the cleanup
requirements, and

{iv} An estimate of the expected year of cleanup for
facilities that use trust funds to demonstrate
financial assurance under 235-15-5-.02(b).

3. A detailed description of other activities necessary
during or after the cleanup period to ensure compliance
with the cleanup performance requirements. This
description may include ¢peration and maint 1anc . such
as, but not limited to groundwater monitoring, leachate
collection, and run-on and run-off control;

4., A schedule for cleanup of known areas of
contamination. AT a minimum, the schedule must include
the total time necessary to remediate each known area of



contamination and the time required for cleanup
activities;

5. Provide procf cf financial assurance in accordance
with 335-15-5; and

6. An estimate of the expected year of cleanup for
facilities that use trust funds to demonstrate financial
assurance under 335-15-5-.02(b).

{(c} An estimate cf the maximum inventory of remediation
wastes/contaminated media on-site during cleanup operations.

{(d} A Voluntary Cleanup Plan submitted by a responsible
must provide for remediation of all

vvvvvvvvvvvvvvv on described in the property assessment report

whether on-site c¢r cff-site beyond the property boundary.

{e}) A Voluntary Cleanup Plan submitted by a ncn-responsible

party must prcovide for remediation of all contamination

described in the property assessment report on-site only.

{3) Modifications. The applicant may modify the approved cleanup
plan at any time prior tc the notification of cleanup by
submitting a written request to the Department. The request for
modification approval must include a copy of the amenc 1 cleanup
plan.

{a) The applicant must modify the cleanup plan whenever:

1. Changes in cperating plans or facility design affect
the cleanup plan;

2. There is a change in the expected year of cleanup, 1if
applicable;

3. Unexpected events encountered during cleanup require
a modification of the cleanup plan; and/or

4, The applicant determines that it necessary or
advisable to make changes and/or deviations in cleanup
requirements that affect either cleanup activities or
the degree of remediation initially proposed,



(b) An applicant with an approved cleanup plan shall submit
request for modification to the Department at least 60 days
prior to the proposed change in facility design or
operation, or no more than 30 days after an unexpected event
has occurred which has affected the cleanup plan.

(c) If at any time an applicant determines that any element
of an approved voluntary cleanup plan must be modified in
order to terminate activities at the property, the applicant
shall notify the Department and obtain approval of the
proposed modification which may be withheld only if the
requested modification would increase the risk to human
health and the environment posed by conditions at the
property.

(4) Processing.

(3)

(a) Within 60 days of submittal, the Department shall either
approve a complete or modified Voluntary Cleanup Plan, or
request corrections to or disapprove the Voluntary Cleanup
Plan. The plan shall be considered approved if the
Department fails to act within this timeframe.

(b) The Department shall review for completeness every
cleanup plan submitted for approval as required by
335-15-4-.04 (4). Upon completing the review, the Department
shall notify the applicant in writing whether the plan is
complete. If the plan is incomplete, the Department:

1. Shall list the information necessary to make the plan
complete;

2. Shall specify in the notice of deficiency a date for
submitting the necessary information; and

3. Shall request any information necessary to clarify,
modify, or supplement previously submitted material.

4. Disapprove the plan if requested information is not
submitted in a timely fashion.

(c} Once a cleanup plan is determined to be complete, the
Department will provide for public comment in accordance
with 335-15-6-.02(1}.

Implementation of Voluntary Cleanup Plan.

(a) Upon the Department approval of a Voluntary Cleanup
Plan, the applicant shall begin implementation. The
Department’s approval of a Voluntary Cleanup Plan shall in



no way be construed as a guarantee, promise, cor assurance
that the Department will concur with the applicant’s
Certification of Compliance with the cleanup requirements.

(k) If at any time the applicant or the Department
determines that any element of an approved Voluntary Cleanup
Plan must be modified in order to develop the information
necessary Lo perform a risk assessment or identify
applicable cleanup standards for the qualifying property,
the applicant shall modify the approved plan and cbtain
approval of the proposed modification,.

{c} An applicant shall retain records of any test results,
waste analyses, and determinations made in accordance with
the Voluntary Property Assessment Plan and/or the Voluntary
Property Cleanup Plan, as well as records of off-site
disposal locations, waste types and quantities, for a period
of three years.

{(d) The applicant shall submit proof of financial assurance
to implement the Vcluntary Cleanup Flan, in such form as
specified by the Department in 335-15-5-.02.

(6) Removal of Wastes and ™ ~~ntaminat >n or Dismantling of
Equipmer+. Nothing in 33U-10-2-.04 shall pr ‘:lude the applicant
from the removal of hazardous wastes, constituents, contaminants
or pollutants and decontamination or dismantling eguipment in
accordance with an approved cleanup plan either before or after
notification of cleanup, provided all appropriate manifesting
records are maintained.

{7) Voluntary Cleanup Report.

{a) iithin 60 days of completion o cleanup
0f vae envire sice, the applicant shall submit co Lne
Department, by registered mail, a report that the site, has
been remediated in accordance with the specifications in the
approved cleanup plan.

{b) Content. The report must detail the actions performed in
accordance with the specifications in the approved cleanup
plan. At a minimum, the cleanup report must include:
1. The information required by 335-15-4-.04(2}).
2. Certification of Compliance.
(i) Within 60 days of completion of cleanup or each

area of contamination and/or within 60 days of
completion of cleanup of the entire site, the



applicant shall submit to the Department, by

that the area
ULl LulltallllilatLlwll, Willi, UL bile, ad> applicable, nas
been remediated in accordance with the
specifications in the approved cleanup plan

(1i) Certain information required by 335-15 involves
the practice of engineering and/or land surveying,
2e thnea tarms are defined in ‘'ode of

1975, §534-11-1 to .- .1-37; and/or the

wraccice wr ageology, as that term is defined in Code

of 1975, §§34-41-1 to 34-41-24. It is
the iLespvnsrvacity of any person preparing or
submitting such information to ensure compliance
with these laws and any regulations promulgated

thereunder. All submissions, or parts thereof, which

are required by State law to be prepared by a

licensed engineer, land surveyor, or geclogist, must

include the engineer’s, land surveyor’s, and/or
geologist’s signature and/or seal, as required by
the applicable licensure laws.

3. Restricted Use Property. For those properties that
are cleaned up to regquirements less stringent than those
required for unrestricted residential use, the property
cwner shall comply with the requirements of 335-15-6-.
03(3) within 60 days ¢f the submission of the
Certification of Ccmpliance.,

{(8) Site Cleanup Prior to Submission of the Application. TIf site
cleanup was conducted prior to submission of the application,
all pertinent information from the original assessment and
cleanup plans shall be incorporated into a Voluntary Property
Assessment and Cleanup Report. The site is required to meet all
requirements of 335-15 to be eligibkle for limitation of
liability provisions cited in the Alabama Land Recycling and
Economic Redevelopment Act.

author: Fred A. Barnes; Keith N. West; Lawrence A. Norris;
Stephen Z. Cckb; James L. Bryant; Vernon H. Crockett; Sonja B.
Favors; Pamela W. Luckie; Crystal L. Collins; Lynn T. Royx -; M,
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Statutory Authority: Code of 1975, §22-30E-9.
History: May 16, 2002. Amenc... ..... o.tober 21, 2004;
effective November 25, 2004. Amended: Filed August 15, 2006;
effective September 19, 2006. BAmended: Published February 28,
2020; effective April 13, 2020. BAmended: Pubklished anril 29,
2022; effective June 13, 2022




335-15-4-.05 Cleanup Requirements.

(1) Cleanup levels.

(a) The participant, with the concurrence of the Department,
shall consider impacts to human health and the environment.
In establishing cleanup standards, cleanup levels may be
based on specific regquirements of relevant environmental
laws or regulations {(e.g., Clean Water Act, Clean Air Act,
TSCA, RCRA, CERCLA, et al.), derived using the procedures
outlined in Section 300.430(e) (2) of the National 0il and
Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (40 CFR Part
300), and/or based upon the results of a site-specific risk
assessment.

(b) The Department may set cleanup levels that reflect
current and future use scenarios for the property as
follows:

1. A site shall be deemed to have met the requirements
for unrestricted use if the cleanup levels are derived
in a manner consistent with Department or Environmental
Protection Agency guidelines for assessing human and

environmental health risks from hazardcus constituents.

2. For sites that do not achieve the unrestricted use
classification, restrictions on site use shall be
applied to achieve cleanup standards. Restrictions shall
include, but are not limited to, land use controls. The
restrictions imposed upon a site shall be media-specific
and may vary according to site-specific conditions.

(2) Remedial Action Measures. Cleanup levels for all media
contaminated with hazardous constituents or hazardous wastes,
that the applicant or the Department has reason to believe may
have been released at the site shall be determined in accordance
with 335-15-4-.05(3). Should the concentration of hazardous
constituent(s) in an aquifer, surface water, soil, sediment or
alr exceed its cleanup level, the Department may require the
voluntary cleanup plan to include measures as necessary to
protect human health and the environment.

(3) Risk Assessment. Cleanup levels may be based 'upon a risk
assessment that considers the site and all surrounding areas
that may be impacted. This risk assessment must reflect current
and future use scenarios.




{4) Propertvy Use Considerations.

(a) A site shall be deemed to have met the requirements for
unrestricted residential use 1f the cleanup level(s) satisfy
the following criteria:

1. Is derived in a manner consistent with ADEM/EPA
guidelines fcr assessing human and environmental health
risks from hazardous constituents;
2. Is based cn scientifically valid studies conducted in
accordance with the Toxic Substances Control Aot (TSOR)
Good T.ahoratory Practice Standard

or equivalent;

3. Represents for human health cleanup levels to address
carcinogens, a cumulative concentration asscciated with
an excess upper bound lifetime cancer risk range of
between 1 X 10-4 and 1 X 10-6 for carcinogens due to
continuous constant lifetime exposure; and

4. Represents for human health cleanup levels to address
ncncarcinogens, a concentration te which the human
population (including sensitive subgroups) could be
exposed on a dally basis that is without appreciable
risk of deleterious effects during a lifetime.

(b) appropriate restricticns on future use
for sives wuac ue 0t achileve the unrestricted use
classification. Restrictions shall include, but are not
limited to, institutional and/or engineering controls., The
restrictions imposed upon a site will be media-specific and
may vary according to site-specific conditions. All use
restrictions shall be descriked in the Certification of
Compliance.

Authour: Fred A. Barnes; Keith N. West, Lawrence A. Norris: M.
Gavin Adams; Austin R. Pierce; Pamela L. Monagha

oraruwwry Authority: Code of 1975, §22-30E-4.
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335-15-4-.06 Certificate Of Compliance-Letter Of
Concurrence.

{1} Certification of Compliance. When all reguirements of an
approved cleanup plan have keen completed, the applicant shall
submit to the Department a Certificaticon of Compliance. A
Certification of Compliance may alsc be submitted when an
assessment based on an approved Voluntary Property Assessment
Plan has been completed and no ceontamination discovered. The
Department shall review all repcrts and the required
Certification of Compliance submitted under 335-15-4-.06. The
applicant or eligible successcr must satisfactorily maintain the
engineering contrels, remediation systems, or if non-permanent
institutional controls are utilized pursuant to an agreement,
the Department may lssue the applicant a “Letter of Concurrence”
with cconditions., The Department may authorize an applicant to
conduct a phased response only when, in the Department's
evaluation, the schedule is reascnable.

{2} “Letter of Concurrence”. Upon ccncurrence by the Department,
the Department shall issue to the applicant “Letter of
Concurrence”.

{3} “Letter of Concurrenc ith Condition For partial
response actions, a “Lett.. <. Concurrence” with conditions
shall pertain only to the partial respconse action area and shall
include a legal description of that area.

(4} Deed Records The ammlicant <hall comply with the
requirements o 335-5.

{5} Revocation. The “Letter of Concurrence” may be revoked by
the Department in the event that contamination posing an
unacceptable risk to human health and the environment is
discovered on site, or discovery is made that the submitted
certification of compliance was based con informaticn that was
materially false, inaccurate or misleading.

{a) The applicant shall be notified in writing by certified
mail of the proposed revocation.

{b) The applicant shall be given an cpportunity to respond
within 30 days upon receipt of the letter.

{c) Unacceptable response t¢ the revccation letter will
result in the reinstatement ¢f any cleared deed notation
and/or deed restriction until such time as the property 1is
deemed to be in compliance.






ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
LAND DIVISION-BEROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AND VOLUNTARY CLEANUP
PROGRAM
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE

CHAPTER 335-15-8
BROWNFIELD REMEDIATION RESERVE FUND

TABLE OF CONTENTS

335-15-8-.01 Purpose

335-15-8-.02 Applicability

335-15-8-.03 Criteria for Eligibility and
‘Reimbursement

335-15-8-.04 Use of Brownfield Remediation Reserve
Funds

335-15-8-.05 Applications for Reimbursement

335-15-8-.06 Fund Reimbursement Procedures

335-15-8-.01 Purpose.

This chapter is promulgated to establish administrative
guidelines and procedures to determine the manner in which
reimbursements are made from the Brownfield Remediation Reserve
Fund as defined in Code of Alabama 1975 §22-30E-5 and to
implement the purposes and objectives of the Brownfield
Remediation Reserve Fund Act of 2023 (Act Number 2023 - 356 2023
Regular Session

Author: Crystal L. Collins; Pamela W. Luckie
Statutory Authority: Code of Alabama, 1975, §22-30E-5.
History: June 1, 2023. Proposed Rule: October 20, 2023

335-15-8-.02 Applicability.

(1) The Department will deposit all Brownfield Remediation
Reserve Fund contributions into the Brownfield Remediation
Reserve Fund.

(2) The Department shall collect from each responsible person
applicant a Brownfield Remediation Reserve Fund Contribution in
the amount of five hundred dollars ($500) per acre for each



qualifying property in addition to the Voluntary Cleanup Program
application and oversight fees as described in 335-15-4.

[Note: Application and associated oversight fees are not
deposited into the Brownfield Remediation Reserve Fund]

(3) The Contribution to the Brownfield Remediation Reserve Fund
will function solely for the administration and purpose of this
chapter.

(4) These regulations apply for the Department to use the
amounts in the Brownfield Remediation Reserve Fund for post-
remediation costs at a qualifying property, provided the amount
does not exceed four million dollars ($4,000,000) per property.

{5) The obligations of the Department for the application of
amounts in the Brownfield Remediation Reserve Fund, as provided
in this chapter, shall not constitute a work of internal
improvement, a loan of money, or an extension of credit by the
state to any private or corporate enterprise or any individual,
association, or corporation. To the extent there are
insufficient funds in the fund to be used to pay for remediation
costs or post-remediation costs, the Department shall have no
obligations or responsibility to pay for or conduct cleanup
activities.
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335-15-8-.03 Criteria for Eligibility and Reimbursement.

(1) Properties are eligible for the Brownfield Remediation
Reserve Fund reimbursement provided the following criteria are
met:

{a) Initial Voluntary Cleanup Program Cleanup at the
qualifying property was conducted by a responsible person
applicant pursuant to 335-15-4 after December 31, 2023;

(b) Contamination was cleaned up, remediated, and documented
as outlined in 335-15-8-.03(1l) {a) in a Voluntary Assessment
Report or Voluntary Cleanup Plan/Report that was approved by
the Department pursuant to 335-15-4;



(c} Expenditures incurred must qualify as post-remediation
costs as defined in 335-15-1-.02;

(2) Applicants, as defined in 335-15-1-.02, requesting an
eligibility determination for reimbursement from the Brownfield
Remediation Reserve Fund shall submit a formal request to the
Department which shall include the following:

(a) A full explanation of the changes proposed to address
the required post-remediation modification. The explanation
must include a detailed description of the actions to be
performed and how it will address the risk reduction.

{(b) A copy of the Letter of Concurrence with Conditions for
the qualifying property which includes the assigned
Voluntary Cleanup Program project number;

(c}) The nature and extent of the contamination identified
that requires additional cleanup;

(d} Detailed explanation of the work to be performed; and,

(e) A cost estimate that includes itemization of all
potential post-remediation costs including but not limited
to labor hours and rates, analytical charges, equipment
charges, and other categories which shall be identified by
the Department, or which the applicant may wish to provide.

{3) Requests for reimbursement shall be submitted within 180
days of the Department's approval for work to commence.

{(4) Any deviations from the Department approved land-use
controls do not qualify for reimbursement under this fund.

Note: Any modification to the Department approved Assessment or
Cleanup Plan will follow the requirements of Division 15 and may
be subject to the Public Participation requirements.
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335-15-8-.04 Use of Brownfield Remediation Reserve Funds.

(1) Remediation Reserve Funds may be used for any qualifying
property in the state for which remediation reserve fund



contributions have been made after December 31, 2023, for which
there is not a responsible person.

{(2) Use of funds:

(2} To pay the post—remediation costs as defined in
335-15-1-.02 for any qualifying property as described in
335-15-8-.03 (1) in the state which was cleaned up or
remediated in accordance with the Department approved
Voluntary Cleanup Plan, and

(b} Where the established risk reduction standards upon
which a cleanup or remédiation was previocusly conducted have
changed.

(3) The Brownfield Remediation Reserve Fund may not be used to
pay or reimburse any costs incurred for: ’

(a) Long=term groundwater monitoring;
(b) Utilization of a soil management plan; or

(c} As a result of non-compliance with the applicable
response action or land use controls within an environmental
covenant.

(4) All reimbursements shall be subject to approval by the
Department. Should a site inspection, a review of documentation
or other information available to the Department reveal a
discrepancy between the work necessary to comply with the post-
remediation costs and the expenditures incurred, the Department
may deny the application for reimbursement.
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335-15-8-.05 Applications for Réimbursement.

(1) Applications for reimbursement for post remediation costs
shall be submitted on a form established by the Department which
shall include an itemization of all charges according te labor
hours and rates, analytical charges, equipment charges, and
other categories which may be identified by the Department, or
any other information the Department requests. Documentation of



charges to include actual invoices must be submitted as part of
the application, as required by the Department.

(2) The application shall contain the following statement which
shall be signed by the owner, operator, or the project manager
of the contracting firm responsible for performance of post-
remediation work where applicable:

I certify to the best of my knowledgé and belief: that the
costs presented herein represent actual costs incurred in
the work performed related to this site during the period of
time indicated on this application; and that no charges are
presented as part of this application that did not result
from the post-remediation costs which were necessary due to
the standards outlined in 335-15-8-.04 at this site. I have
personally examined and am familiar with the information
submitted in this reimbursement request and all attachments
and, based on my inquiry of those persons immediately
responsible for obtaining the information contained in this
reimbursement request, I certify that the information is
true, accurate, and complete, and that this reimbursement
request does not duplicate any request for reimbursement for
any charge previously submitted to the Department.

(3) Applications for reimbursements shall be submitted following
acceptance by the Department of completed post—-remediation
costs. Such post-remediation costs may include but are not
limited to the following:

(a) Completion, submittal and/or implementation of a
Department approved Voluntary Property Assessment Plan/
Report or Voluntary Cleanup Plan;

(b) Completion and submittal of a Risk Assessment; or
(c) Completion and submittal of an Environmental Covenant.

(4) Applications for reimbursement for the implementation of
post-remediation activities shall be submitted ninety (90) days
following initiation of work to be performed and at ninety (90)
day intervals thereafter.
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335-15-8-.06 Fund Reimbursement Procedures.

(1) Reimbursement from the Brownfield Remediation Reserve Fund
will be made directly to the eligible owner or operator in cases
where the owner or operator submits documentation verifyirng the
owner or operator has paid for the post-remediation costs.

(2) Where the owner or operator has submitted a complete
application for reimbursement for the post-remediation costs
conducted in accordance with 335-15-8, but has not paid for
these activities or claims, reimbursement will be made to the
contractor who provided the investigative response action
service.
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